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NOTICE

MNOTICE is hereby given that the Thirty Fifth Annual
General Meeting of the members of Indo Borax &
Chemicals Ltd. will be held on Saturday, 13" August,
2016 at Mini Auditorium of SN.D.T. Women's
University, Sir Vithaldas Vidya Vihar, Opp. Lido
Cinema, Juhu Road, Santacruz (W), Mumbai —400 049
at1.00 p.m. to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. Toreceive, consider and adopt:
(a) the audited financial statements of the
Company for the financial year ended 317
March, 2016, together with the Report of the
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon: and
(b) the audited consolidated financial staternents
of the Company for the financial vear ended
31" March, 2016, together with the Reports of
the Auditors thereon,
2, To declare a dividend of Rs. 1.50 per equity share
for the year ended 31" March, 2016.
3. Toappoint Mr. 5. K. Jain as a Director liable to retire
by rotation.
4. To re-appoint Auditor and fix their remuneration

and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to
pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to Section 139, 142
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made
thereunder, as amended from time to time,
pursuant to the recommendations of the audit
committee of the Board of Directors, M/s. U S.
Lalpuria & Company, Chartered Accountants,
(Registration No.105581W) be and is hereby re-
appointed as Auditors of the Company, to hold
office from the conclusion of this Annual General
Meeting till the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company at such
remuneration as shall be fixed by the Board of
Directors of the Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
5. To approve the remuneration of the Cost Auditor

for the financial year ended 31" March, 2017 and in
this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, the
following resclution as an Ordinary Resolution:
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provision of
Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Aucdit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time
being in force), the remuneration payable during the
financial year 2016-17 to Mr. R. M. Kandoi, Cost
Accountants, (Membership No. 5427) appointed by
the Board of Directors of the Company, to conduct the
audit of the cost records of the Company for the
financial year ending 31 March, 2017, be paid the
remuneration as set out in the explanatory statement
annexed to the Notice convening this Meeting;

NOTES:
1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual

General Meeting (AGM) is entitled to appoint a proxy
to attend and vote on a poll instead of himself/herself
and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company.
A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not
exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not
more than ten percent of the total share capital of the
Company carrying voting rights. Member holding
more than ten percent of the total share capital of the
company carrying voting rights, may appoint a single
person as proxy and such shall not act as a proxy for
any other person or shareholder.

The proxy form duly completed and signed, should be
lodged with the company, at its registered office at least
48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

Corporate members intending to send their authorized
representatives to attend the meeting are requested to
send to the company a certified copy of Board
Resclution authorizing their representative to attend
and vote on their behalf at the meeting.

Members/Proxies should bring the enclosed
Attendance Slip duly filled in along with Annual
Report, for attending the meeting. Members who hold
shares in dematerialized form are requested to bring
their Client ID and DP ID Numbers for identification.

. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books will
remain closed from 5" August, 2016 to 13th August,
2016 (both days inclusive), in connection with the
ensuing Annual General Meeting and the payment of
dividend.

. The final dividend as recommended by the Board of
Directors, if approved by the members at the Annual
General Meeting, will be paid after 13" August,
2016, as under:

a) To all beneficial owners in respect of shares held in
electronic form as per the data as may be made

Mummbai: 30" May, 2016

5.

7.

t

RESOILVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors
of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all
acts and to take all such steps as may be necessary,
proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
For INDO BORAX & CHEMICALS LTD

(Pravin Chavan)
Company Secretary

available by the National Securities Depository
Limited and the Central Depository Services
{India) Limited as of the close of the business hours
on 5th August, 2016;

b} To all shareholders in respect of shares held in
physical form after giving effect to transfers in
respect of complete and valid request lodged with
the company on or before the close of business
hours on 5" August, 2016.

Explanatory statement in respect of ltem MNo. 5 of the
accompanying notice as required by Section 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013 is annexed hereto.

Members holding shares in physical form are requested
to immediately intimate change of address, if any to the
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent M/s. Sharex
Dynamic (India) Private Ltd., quoting reference of the
Registered Folio Number. Members holding shares in
the electronic form are advised to inform any change in
address to their respective Depository Participants. The
address as furnished to the Company by the respective
Depaositories viz. NSDL & CDSL will be printed on the
dividend envelopes. The company or its Registrars can
not act on any request received directly from the
shareholders holding shares in electronic form for any
change of bank particulars or bank mandates. Such
changes are to be advised only to the Depository
Participant of the shareholders.

Members holding shares in physical form are requested
to consider converting their holding to dematerialized
form to eliminate all risks associated with physical
shares and for ease of portfolio management.
Members can contact Sharex Dynamic (India) Put,
Ltd., for assistance in this regard.

Members holding shares in physical form in identical
order of names in more than one folio are requested to
send to the Company or Sharex Dynamic (India) Put.
Ltd., the details of such folios together with the share
certificates for consolidating their holding in one folio.
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10.

11

12,

A consolidated share certificate will be returned to such
members after making requisite changes thereon.

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, the
member whose name appears as the first holder in the
order of names as per the Register of Members of the
Company will be entitled to vote.

The Company has transferred the unpaid or unclaimed
dividends declared up to financial year 2007-08, from
time to time on due dates, to the Investors Education
and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central
Government, Pursuant to provisions of Investors
Education and Protection Fund (Uploading of
information regarding unpaid and unclaimed amount
lying with companies) Rules, 2012, the company has
uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed amount
lying with the company as on 22™ August, 2015 (the
date of last Annual General Meeting) on the website of
the Company, as also on the website of the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs..

Shareholders seeking any information with regard to
Accounts or desirous of asking questions at the AGM
are requested to write to the Company at least seven
days in advance, so as to enable the management to
keep the information ready atthe meeting.

. Particulars of directors seeking re-appointment is given

in the Report of the Directors on Corporate
Governance forms part of the notice.

Under the terms of appointment, Chairman &
Managing Director is not subject to retire by rotation.
Mr. 5. K. Jain, Chairman and Managing Director, was
appointed as Chairman and Managing Director for the
term of five year w.ef. 1% April, 2012, which was
approved at the Annual General Meeting held on 26"
July, 2012. However, as per the provision of Section
152 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013, the director to
retire by rotation at every AGM shall be those who have
been longest in office since their last appointment. To
the extent that Mr. S. K. Jain, is required to retire by
rotation, he would need to be re-appointed as Director,
however his terms and conditions of appointment as
Chairman & Managing Director would be remain same
as per member's resolution dated 26" July, 2012 for the
remaining tenure, if appointed.

The Notice of AGM along with the Annual Report
2015-16 is being send by electronic mode to those
members whose e-mail addresses are registered with
the Company/Depositories, unless any member has
requested for a physical copy of the same. For
members who have not registered their e-mail
addresses, physical copies are being sent by the
permitted mode.
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13. SEBI has made it mandatory for all listed companies,

to mention in the dividend warrant, the Bank Account
details furnished by the shareholders, while distributing
dividend as well as to use the ECS facility wherever
available. In event of some shareholders not availing
ECS/NECS facility, the bank shall print the Bank details
as available with it in the dividend warrants.

Shareholders holding shares in physical form: Please
provide the following bank details to the Registrar &
Transfer Agent quoting Folio Number to enable us to
credit your account with the dividend directly: Name of
the Bank, Address of the Bank, Bank Account Number,
9 digit MICR code of the branch, IFSC code of the
Branch (preferably, send cancelled cheque leaf)

Shareholders holding shares in dematerialized form:
Please register/update your bank account details i.e.
Bank Name, Branch address, Account no., Account
Type, 9 digit MICR code with your depository
participants with whom you are maintain your demat
account to facilitate credit of dividend directly to your
bank.

14. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)

15.

has mandated the submission of the Permanent
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in the
securities market. Members holding shares in
electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their
PAN to their Depository Participant(s). Members
holding shares in physical form are required to submit
their PAN details to the Registrar and Share Transfer
Agents, Sharex Dynamic (India) Private Limited, Unit -
1, Luthra Ind. Premises, Safed Pool, Andheri Kurla
Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai -400072.

Voting through Electronics Means:

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management & Administration) Rules
2014, as amended from time to time and Regulation
44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the company has
provided members a facility to exercise their rights to
vote at the 35" Annual General Meeting by electronic
means. The members may cast their votes using an
electronic voting system from place other than venue
ofthe Meeting (remote e-voting’).

Remote e-voting period commences on 10" August,
2016 (9:00 am) and ends on 12" August, 2016
(5.00 pm). During this period members of the
company, holding shares in either in physical form or
in dematerialized form, as on cut-off date of 5"
August, 2016, may cast their vote electronically. The
E-voling module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting



Indo Borax & Chemicals Ltd.

after end of voting period on 12" August, 2016. Once
the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the
member shall not be allowed to change it
subsequently.

Voting rights of the members shall be in proportion to
their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the
company as on 5" August, 2016. A person, whose
name is recorded in the register of members or in the
register of beneficial owners maintained by the
depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled
to avail the facility of remote e-voting and at the venue
of AGM voting by Ballot/Polling Papers.

The members who have cast their votes through
remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the
AGM but shall not entitled to cast their vote again by
Ballot/Polling Papers.

The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of
discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be
held, allow voting with the assistance of Scrutinizer, by
use of Ballot/Polling Papers, for all those Members,
who are present at the AGM and not cast their votes by
availing remote e-voting facility.

Mr. Manish L Ghia, Partner, Manish Ghia & Associ-
ates, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership MNo.
FCS 6252) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to

scrutinize the e-voting process in fair and transparent
manner.

The Scrutinizer shall, within a period three days from
the conclusion of Annual General Meeting, make a
consolidated scrutinizers report of the votes cast in
favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person
authorized by him in writing who shall countersign the
same.

The result declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report
shall be placed on the Company's website
www.indoborax.com and on the website of CDSL
immediately after the result is declared. The Company
shall simultaneously forward the results to BSE
Limited, where the shares of the Company are listed.

16.The instructions for shareholders voting
electronically are as under :

(i) The voting period begins on 10" August,
2016(9:00 a.m) and ends on 12" August, 2016
{5:00 p.m). During this period shareholders' of the
Company, holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record
date) of 5" August, 2016 may cast their vote
electronically. The e-vating module shall be disabled
by CDSL for voting thereafter.
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(i} Theshareholders should log onto the e-voting website
www.evotingindia.com.

(iii) Click onShareholders.
(iv) Mow Enteryour User 1D

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DPID followed by 8 Digits
ClientID,

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should
enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

{v) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and
Click on Login,

(vi) If you are holding shares in demat form and had
logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an
earlier voting of any company, then your existing
password is to be used.

{vii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:
For Members holding shares in Demat Form
and Physical Form

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by
Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat
shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

¢ Members who have not updated their PAN with
the Company/Depository Participant are requested
to use the first two letiters of their name and the 8
digits of the sequence number in the PAN field,

% In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits
enter the applicable number of ('s before the
number after the first two characters of the name in
CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is Ramesh Kumar
with sequence number 1 then enter RAO0000001
in the PAN field.

Davidend | Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in
Rark Detaild dd / mm / yuuy format ) as recorded in your demat
OR accountor in the company records in order to login.

IDate of Birid ® If both the details are not recorded with the
(DOB] depaository or company please enter the member id [

folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as
mentioned in instruction (iv).

PAN

(viii)After entering these details appropriately, click on
“SUBMIT" tab.

(ix) Members holding shares in physical form will then
directly reach the Company selection screen,
However, members holding shares in demat form will
now reach 'Password Creation' menu wherein they are
required to mandatorily enter their login password in
the new password field. Kindly note that this passwaord
is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for
resolutions of any other company on which they are
eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-
voting through CDSL platform, It is strongly
recommended not to share your password with any
other person and take utmost care to keep vour
password confidential,
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(x) For Members holding shares in physical form, the
details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions
contained in this Notice.

(ki) Click on the EVSN for the relevant Indo Borax &
Chemicals Limited on which you choose to vote.

(xii)On the woting page, you will see “RESOLUTION
DESCRIPTION" and against the same the option
“YES/NO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as
desired. The option YES implies that vou assent to the
Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to
the Resolution.

(xiii)Click on the *“RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish
to view the entire Resolution details.

(xiv)After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote
on, click on “SUBMIT". A confirmation box will be
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on
“OK", else to change vour vote, click on “CANCEL
and accordingly modify your vote.

(xv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution,
you will not be allowed to modify vour vote.

(xvi)You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking
on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

(xvii) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login
password then Enter the User ID and the image
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter
the details as prompted by the system

(xviii)Shareholders can also cast their vote using
CDSL's mobile app m-Voting available for
android based mobiles. The m-Voting app can
be downloaded from Google Play Store.

(xix) Note for Non - Individual Shareholders and
Custodians

+ Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than
Individuals, HUF, MWRI etc.) and Custodian are
required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and
register themselves as Corporates.

+ A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the
stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to
helpdesk.evatingi@edslindia.com.

+ After receiving the login details a Compliance User
should be created using the admin login and
password. The Compliance User would be able to link
the account(s) for which they wish to vote on,

+ The list of accounts linked in the login should be
mailed to helpdesk.evoting@edslindia.com and on
approval of the accounts they would be able to cast
their vote.

+ Ascanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of

Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of
the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF
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format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the
same.

(xx) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-
voling, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions
("FAQs") and e-voting manual available at
www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an
ernail to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 (1) OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“the Act”)

The following statement sets out all material facts relating to
the Special Business mentioned in the accompanying
MNotice:

Item No. 5

The Board, on the recommendation of Audit Committee,
has approved the appointment and remuneration of the
Cost Auditor Mr. R. M. Kandoi, Cost Auditor (Membership
No. 5427} to conduct the audit of the cost records relating
to a boron products of Company for the financial year
ending 31" March, 2017 with audit fees of Rs. 20,000/- plus
service tax as applicable and reimbursement of actual
expenses as incurred by them in connection with the
aforesaid audit.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act,
read with Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors as
recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by
the Board of Directors, has to be ratified by the members of
the company.

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing
an Ordinary Resolution as set out at ltem no. 5 of the Notice
for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost
Auditors for the financial year ended 31 March, 2017.
None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company/ their relatives are, in any way, concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out
at Item No. 5 of the Notice.

The Board recommends the ordinary resolution set out at
item no. 5 of the Notice for approval by members.

By Order of the Board
For Indo Borax & Chemicals Ltd
Pravin Chavan
Company Secretary
Mumbai: 30" May, 2016
Registered Office:;
302, Link Rose,
Linking Road,
Santacruz {West),

Mumbai =400 054
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
To The Members of Indo Borax & Chemicals Ltd,
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting 35" Annual Report and the Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended
on 31" March, 2016.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
The performance of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March, 2016 is summarized below:

(Z. in lacs)
Particulars Standalone Consolidated
31-3-2016 31-3-2015 31-3-2016 31-3-2015
Sales 7340.63 B8128.75 7765.63 8613.01
Less: Excise Duty 803.94 867.85 803.94 867.85
Net Sales 6536.69 7260,90 6961.69 874516
289,79 302,95 303.47
Profit before Depreciation & Taxation 1477.72 1939.67 1488.21 2110.66
Less : Depreciation 124 .49 114.68 125.29 115.66
Provigion for Taxation 388.20 589.30 3080.99 645,30
Deferred Tax 49.08 (6.64) 49.06 (7.14)
Prior period Adjustments - 0.30 - 1.36
Minority interest i — — 45.38
" Profit after Depreciation & Taxation 5.94 1242.03 922.87 1310.10
Balance br"gl_;_nlght forward from previous year 6521.03 5450.04 6629.82 5529.86 |
| Profit available for appropriation 7437 .87 6732.07 7552.69 6830.96
Less . Appropriatons
Capital Redemption Reserve e 27.20 — 27.20
Proposed Final Dividend 48.14 48.14 48.14 48.14
Tax on Dividend 9.80 9.80 9.80 9.80
- Transfer to General Reserve 90.00 125.00 80.00 125.00
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 7289.93 6521.93 7404.75 6629.82

DIVIDEND

Your Directors are pleased to recommend final dividend of
Rs. 1.50 (One Rupee & Fifty Paise) per equity share of Rs.
10/- each on 32,09,000 Equity Shares, if approved by the
members, would involve a cash outflow of Rs, 57,94 Lacs
including dividend tax.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

During the year your company has transferred Rs.
90,00,000/- to General Reserve out of the amount
available for appropriation and an amount of Rs.
72,89,92 891/- is proposed to be retained in the profit and
loss account.

COMPANY'S PERFORMANCE

On consolidated basis, sales for the financial year 2015-16
stood at Rs, 6961.69 lacs which was lower by 20.39% over
last year (Rs. 8745.151lacs in 2014-15). Earnings before
tax and depreciation was Rs, 1488.21lacs, which was lower
by 29.49% over EBTD of Rs, 2110.66 Lacs in 2014-15.
The profit after tax for the vear was Rs, 922,86 lacs, which
was lower by 29.56% over the PAT of Rs. 1310.10 lacs in
2014-15. The drop in the sales and profit was the result of
shutdown of the plant for capacity expansion.

On standalone basis, sales for the financial year 2015-16
stood at Rs. 6536.69 lacs, which was lower by 9.97% over

last vear {Rs. 7260.90 lacs in 2014-15). Earnings before tax
and depreciation was Rs. 1477.72 lacs, which was lower by
23.82% over EBTD of Rs. 1939.67 Lacs in 2014-15. The
profit after tax for the year was Rs. 915.93, which was lower
by 26.25% over the PAT of Rs, 124203 lacs in2014-15.

The production of boron products decreased by 5.33% as
compare to 6.93% increase in previous vear, which was
due to the shutdown of the plant for capacity expansion.
SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

A subsidiary company Indoborax Infrastructure Private
Limited is wholly owned subsidiary company. There are no
associate companies within the meaning of Section 2(6) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), There has been no
material change in the nature of business of the subsidiary.

During the year company has sold 1 unit out of the 2
residential units constructed. During the year under review,
the company recorded turnover of Rs, 425,00 lacs and
earned profit after tax of Rs. 6,93 lacs for the year.

As pursuant to Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 the
Audited accounts and Reports of Board of Directors and
Auditors for the year ended 31" March, 2016 relating to the
subsidiary company are attached to the accounts, hence
the AOC-1 is not required to be given,
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements of the company and
its subsidiary which form part of Annual Report have been
prepared in accordance with section 129(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31" March, 2016 along with report of the
auditors thereon are attached herewith.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The details in respect of the internal financial control and
their adequacy are included in Management Discussion &
Analysis, which forms part of this report.

NUMBER OF MEETING OF THE BOARD

During the financial year 2015-16 the Board of Directors
met 6 times on the following dates: 30-May-2015, 12-Aug-
2015, 18-Sept-2015, 5-Nov-2015, 18-Dec-2015 and 13-
Feb-2016. For details of the meeting of the board, please
refer to the Corporate Governance Report, which forms
part of this report.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

As per requirement of SEBI (Listing Obligation and
Disclosures Requirements) Regulation, 2015 & the
Companies Act, 2013, there are four Committees of the
Board, as follows:

1. Audit Committee

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3. Stakeholder's Relation Committee

4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Details of all the committees along with their composition,
name of the members, meetings held during the year and
attendance are provided in the Corporate Governance
Report, which forms a part of this Report.

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT OF THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013,
the board of directors, to the best of their knowledge and
ability, confirm that:

(i} in the preparation of the annual accounts; the
applicable accounting standards have been followed
and there are no material departures;

(ii) they have selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
at the end of financial vear and of the profit of the
Company for that period;

(iii) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
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preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going
concern basis;

(v) they have laid down internal financial controls to be
followed by the Company and such internal financial
controls are adequate and operating effectively.

(vi] they have devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL

PERSONNEL

Pursuant to the provisions of section 149 of the Act, Mr,
Arun Sureka, Mr. N.K. Mittal and Mr. Govind Parmar, were
appointed as independent directors at the annual general
meeting of the company held on 27" September, 2014,
Company has received declaration from all the
Independent Directors of the company confirming that
they meet the criteria of independence prescribed under
sub-section (6] of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Listing Regulations with Stock Exchange.

During the year, Mr. 5. K. Jain, Chairman & Managing
Director, retires by rotation in the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

Pursuant to provisions of section 2013 of the Act, the key
managerial personnel of the company are Mr. 5.K.Jain,
Chairman and Managing Director, Mr. Sajal Jain, Chief
Executive and Chief Financial Officer and M. Pravin
Chavan, Company Secretary. There has been no change
in the key managerial personnel during the year.

BOARD EVALUATION

The board of directors has carried out an annual evaluation
of its own performance, Board Committees and individual
directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the
corporate governance requirements as prescribed by the
SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulation 2015. The performance of the Board was
evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the
directors on the basis of criteria such as 1. Attendance of
Board Meeting and other Board Committee meetings, 2.
Contribution made in deliberation in meetings 3. Inputs
regarding future growth of company and its performance,
4. Providing feedback going bevond information provided
by the management and 5. Commitment to shareholders
and other stareholders.

In separate meeting of independent Directors, performa-
nce of the non-independent directors, performance of the
board as a whole and performance of the Chairman was
evaluated, taking into account the views of the executive
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directors and non-executive directors. Performance
evaluation of independent directors was done by the entire
board, excluding the independent director being
evaluated.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy [CSR Policy) of the Company and initiatives
undertaken by the Company on CSR activities during the
year are set out in Annexure 1 of this report in the format
prescribed in the Companies{Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. The details about the
CSR committee, please refer to the Corporate Governance
Report, which form part of this report. The CSR policy is
available on the website of the company
hitp:/fwww.indoborax.com/cst.php

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has formulated whistle blower policy for
Directors and employees to report their genuine concerns
regarding unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or
violation of the Company's Code of Conduct and Ethics
Policy. The said mechanism also provides for adequate
safequard against victimization of persons who use such
mechanism and makes provision for direct access to the
chairman of the Audit Committee in the appropriate or
exceptional cases. We affirm that no employee of the
company was denied access to the Audit Committee. The
Whistle Blower Policy have been disclosed on website of
the Company at http://www.indoborax.com/Whistle-
Blower-Policy.php

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The information required under Section 197 of the Act
read with Rule 5 (1) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are
given below:

b

c) The percentage increase in the median remuneration
of the employees in the financial year: 2.09%

d) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of
the company : 83

e} The explanation on the relationship between average
increase in remuneration and company performance:

On an average, employees received an annual
increase of 6%. The individual increment varied from
6% to 22%, based on individual performance. In
order to ensure that remuneration reflects Company
performance, the salary increment is also linked to
overall performance of the company.

fi Comparison of the remuneration of the Key
Managerial Personnel against the performance of the

company:
Aggregate remuneration of Key Managerial
personnel (KMP) in FY 2015-16 (Rs. in lacs) 167.47
Revenue 6536.69
Remuneration to KMP (as % of revenue) 2.56
Profit before Tax 1353.23
Remuneration of KMP | % of PBT} 12.38

g} Variation in the market capitalisation of the company,
price earnings ratio as atthe closing date of the current
financial year and previous financial year:

Particulars March March
31, 2016 | 31, 2015 © Change
Market capitalisation | 9505.06 7528.31 26.26
Price Earnings Ratio 10.38 6.09 70.44

h) Percentage increase or decrease in the market
guotations of the shares of the company in
comparison to the rate at which the company came

a) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the out with thelast public offer:
median remuneration of the employees of the Particulars March | May 24, [g Change
Company for the financial year: 31, 2016 |1993 (IPO)
Nl s Wi Do ki Ralio ofme::ii,an Market Price (BSE) 20620 15.00 1974.66
remuneration |
Mr. Sushilkumar Jain, Managing Director| 38.30 i) Average percentile increase already made in the
Mr. Sajal Jain, Chiel e 38.30 salaries of employees other than the managerial

|_Chief Financial Officer

Company has not paid any remuneration to non-executive

directors except sitting fees.

b) The percentage increase in remuneration of each
director, key managerial personnel in the financial year:

Name of the Directors m"umﬁnﬁ
Key Managerial Personnel in the financial vear
Mr. Sushilkumar Jnin, MD (26.41)

Mr, Sajal Jain, CEQ & CFO (26.41)

Mr. Pravin Chavan, Company Secretary * .

*Since this information is part of the previous vear, the same is not comparable.

personnel in the last financial year and its comparison
with the percentile increase in the managerial
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if
there are any exceptional circumstances for increase
in the managerial remuneration:

The average annual increase was around 6%.
However during the year, the total increase in
employee benefits is approximately 27%.

During the vear under review there was no increment
in the managerial salary, the commission which is
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based on % of profit have also been decreased, which
is directly linked with the performance of the
company. Decrease in the managerial remuneration
for the year was 26.41%.

i} Comparison of each remuneration of the Kevy
Managerial Personnel against the performance of the

b

k) The key parameters for any variable component of
remuneration availed by the directors:
The members have, at the AGM of the company held
on 26" July, 2012 & 22™ August, 2013 approved the
commission to Managing Director & Executive
Director, respectively. The overall remuneration
payable to Managing Director & Execulive Director

Sampony: M i Sa,jal[ ﬁd.nmpmi} shall not exceed the maximum limits specified in the
Sushilkumary Jain Chavan, Act.
Jain Cm‘;im lcompany !  The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid
Managing E'Dmm“ ficer | Secratary director to that of the employees who are not directors
Director | and Chief but receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid
F;}“E’c“ﬁ:‘ director during the year: None.
m) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the
| Remuneration in FY 16| 73.75 73.75 19.97 remuneration policy of the Company:
Revenue 6536.69 The company affirms remuneration is as per the
Remuneration as % of | 1.13 1.13 0.31 remuneration policy of the company.
revenue n) The information required to be given under section
[ Profit before tax (PBT) 1353.23 197(12) read with Rule 5(2) & (3) of the Companies
Remuneration 5.45 "5745 1.48 (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
(as % of PBT) Personnel ) Rules, 2014 is given below :
MName, Age, Remuneration | Take home Terms of Previous
Qualification, Experience, Gross pay during Appointment Employment
Designation Date of Joining the year
Mr. S.K.Jain 72 Years Contractual,
B.Sc. 52 Years Rs.73,75,222/- | Rs.43,52,399/- | Governed by Self-Employed
Managing Director | 23-09-1980 members' resolution
Mr. Sajal Jain 48 Years Conitractual,
B. Com. 28 Years Rs.73,75,822/- | Rs.39,70,437/- | Governed by First Employment
Executive Director | 01-06-1988 member’s resolution

POLICY ON DIRECTOR'S APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

The Company's policy on directors appointment and
remuneration and other matters provided in Section
178(3) of the Act, has been disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report, which forms part of the Directors
Report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND
INVESTMENTS

The particulars of loans, guarantees and investments have
been disclosed in the financial staterments.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

None of the transactions with related parties falls under the
scope of Section 188(1) of the Act. The information on the
transactions with related parties pursuant to Section 134
{3}(h) of the Act read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in AOC-2 in Annexure
Il and same forms part of this report.

DELISTING OF SECURITIES

The Company had applied for delisting of shares from
Kolkatta Stock Exchange in 2005-2006, however, till date
the confirmation of delisling has not been received from
Exchange.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS

AND OUTGO
A.  Conservation of Energy

i} Energy Conservation Measures taken

ii) Utilization of alternate source of energy

iii) Capital Investment on energy
conservation equipment

The Company continues to lay special emphasis on conservation of
energy and have taken measures like regular monitoring of
consumption, reduction of transmission losses and up to date
mainienance of systems,

During the year, company has made capital investment of Rs.
2,65,45,449/- by installing new boiler as energy conservation equipment
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B. Technology Absorption
1. Research & Development
The Company has no specific Research &
Development Department. However in house
quality control facilities are utilised for product and
process improvement and updation.
2. Technology Absorption
The Company has not imported any technology.
C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
a) Earnings + Nil
b} OQOulgo
-Import of Raw Materials : Rs. 2037.39 lacs
-Capital Goods : RBs. 105.05 lacs
- Foreign Travel/subscription: Rs. 3.95 lacs

DEPOSITS FROM PUBLIC

The Company has not accepted any deposit from public
and as such, no amount on account of principal or interest
on deposits from public was outstanding as on the date of
Balance Sheet.

RISK MANGEMENT

The Board of the company has formed a risk management
committee to frame, implement and monitor the risk
management plan for the company. The committee is
responsible for reviewing the risk management plan and
ensuring effectiveness. The audit committee has additional
oversight in the areas of financial risk and controls. Major
risks identified by the business and functions are
systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a
continuing basis.

The risk management policy has been covered in the
management discussion and analysis, which forms part of
this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A separate detailed Corporate Governance Report and
Certificate of Auditors of your Company regarding the
compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as
per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures
Requirements) Regulations 2015 are annexed to this
report.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As provided under section 92(3) of the Act, the exiract of
the Annual Return is given Annexure-III in the prescribed
Form MGT-9, which forms part of this report.
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STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. VL S. Lalpuria & Co, Chartered Accountants, Statutory
Auditors of the Company hold office, in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, up to
conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting and are
eligible for re-appointment.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed
Prasad Parab & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary
to conduct Secretarial Audit and his report on Companies
Secretarial Audit is annexed to this report.

COMMENTS ON AUDITORS REPORT

There are no qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks
or disclaimers made by VS. Lalpuria & Co., Statutory
Auditors, in their report and by Prasad Parab & Associates,
Company Secretary in Practice, in his secretarial audit
report.

The statutory auditors have not reported any incident of
fraud to the Audit Committee of the company in the vear
under review.

COST AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 (3) of the
Companies Act, 2013, qualified Cost Auditors have been
appointed to conduct cost audit for the year under review
relating to the products manufactured by the Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors thank to the clients, vendors, shareholders
& bankers for their continued support during the year. Your
Directors place on record their appreciation for the
contribution made by employees at all levels. Your
Company's growth has been possible due to their hard
work, co-operation & support,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

S. K. Jain
Chairman

Mumbai,
May 30, 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The Directors present their report on the specified matters
to the extent relevant or within limits that in their opinion
are imposed by the company’s own competitive position,
as under:-

Industry structure and development

Mo reliable and published data is available specifically on
boron products industry. As boron minerals are not found
in India, thus the basic inputs have to be essentially
imported.

Opportunity, threats, risks and concerns

As, the basic input of the boron minerals are imported, thus
timely availability of basic inputs at competitive prices in
desired quality, composition and quantities has been,
continues to be and expected to remain a matter of
concern, risk and threat. The company is continuously
engaged in exploring and developing alternative sources
for imported raw material to minimize the risk.

Segment wise or product-wise performance

The company is operating in a single reportable segment
i.e. manufacturing and selling of Chemicals. Hence,
segment-wise break-up is not applicable to operations of
the company on standalone basis. The construction project
being executed by the subsidiary company. Segment wise
information is given in the notes to accounts in
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Outlook

The policy of Government of India is encouraging import
of finished products at the cost of domestic industries is a
real threat, thus the margins may come down resulting in
unpredictable operations. Otherwise, the domestic market
is expanding every year and the Company can sell more
quantity, as its products are well known for its quality.

During the vear, Company has increased installed
production capacity of boron products by 5,600 MT p.a. at
Pithampur Plant. In the process of capacity expansion,
Company has repaired old plant and machinery to
harmonize with new plant & machinery and to synchronize
the old production process with new one. Company has
also made addition to factory building and repaired to the
old factory building including roads.

Internal control system and their adequacy
The Company has proper and adequate systems of
internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that all
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assets are safequarded; prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting record, timely preparation of reliable financial
disclosures, transactions are authorized and recorded
correctly to ensure compliance with policies and statutes.

Internal control systems have been found to be adequate
and commensurate with the size and nature of the business
of the company and are reviewed from time to time for
further improvement.

Discussion on financial performance with respect
to operational performance

The gross sales in current year stood at Rs. 7,340.63 Lacs
compared to Rs. 8,128.75 Lacs in previous vear.
Production of boron products decreased by 5.34 % as
compare to 6.93% increase in previous year. The overall
production and sales drop during the year was result of
shutdown of plant for almost three months for capacity
expansion.

Human Resources Development & Management
During the vear company has employed 19 new
employees in the factory, now the total permanent
employees of the company are 83. There are no other
reportable material developments in the matter of human
resources and industrial relations, which were cordial
throughout the year.

Risk and Concerns

The risk faced by the company are raw material risk, quality
risk, competition risk, foreign exchange risk, realization
risk, cost risk.

The risk management committee has mitigation plan
against above risk. Company is continuously engaged in
exploring and developing alternative sources of imported
raw material to mitigate the raw material risk. Highest
guality parameters are set for the production of the boron
products, also ensure that there should be continuous
supply material to the customers which will mitigate the
guality and competition risk. To mitigate the foreign
exchange risk, company always bought material on receipt
of documents. If there is import of raw material on credit
basis, the same are hedged. The Company assuring to the
consumers of the superior quality of products, leading to
better realizations, even in the wake of large import threat.
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meCompany’sphﬂumphyktomnductihaﬁahhmmannﬂwhichhtmuparmt clear and evident to those having
dealings with or having a stake in the Company, namely shareholders, lenders, creditors and emplovees. The Company's
philosaphy on Corporate Governance is thus concerned with the ethies and values of the Company and Hs Directors, who
are expected to act in the best interest of the Company and remaln accountabls to shareholders and other beneficlaries for
their action.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors comprises of Chairman cum Managing Divector, Wice Chalrman cum Executhve Divector and four
Non-Executive Directars of which three are Independent Directors. Since the Chairman is executive, the Board's
composition meets with the stipulated requivement of ad least helf of the boerd comprising Independent Directors,

During the financial year 2015-16 the Board of Directors met 6 times on the following dates: 30-May-2015, 12-Aug-2015,
18-Sep-2015, 5-Nov-2015, 18-Dec-2015 and 13-Feb-2016.

During the year a separate meeting of the Independent divectors waa held inter-alia to review the parformance of the non-
independent directors and the board as awhole,

Attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings and last Annual General Mesting:

Name of Director | Relationship | Category Designation No. of | Atten No. of MNo. of
with other * Board | dance Director Chairm
Directors Meetin | at last ships in anship/
£s AGM | other Boards | Membe
Attend {Excluding | rshipin
ed alternate other
Directorship | Board
and private | Commi
companies) ttees
* %
Mr. 5. K. Jain Husband of | Promoter Chairman & f Y es Mil Mil
Mrs. Sushila | & E.D Managing
Jain Director
Mr. Sajal Jain Son of Mr | E.D Vice- 5 Yes Nil Mil
S.K. Jain, & Chairman &
Mrs., Sushila Executive
Jain Director, CFO
Mrs, Sushila Jain | Wife of N.E.D Director i Y es Mil Mil
Mr, 5. K. Jain
Mr. Arun Sureka Mone | & W.E.D | Director 5 Y es Mil Mil
Mr. N, K. Mittal Mone | & W.E.D | Director 5 Y es Mil Mil
Mr. G.R. Parmar Mone | & N.E.D | Director 5 Y es Mil Mil

¢ *E ). - Exacutive Divector, NED - Non Executive Director, | - Independant
« #8 Inchades the Public Company and Forelm Company but excdude Private and Section 8 Company,

« The directors familiarization program imported to (ndependent Directors are available on the website of the conmpamy wwwindoboro. com
Detalls of equity shares of the Company held by the Directars Business and Ethics for Board Members and Senior
as on 31 March, 2016 are given below: Management staff of the company and the same s
Mr. 5. K | Mrs, Sushila | Mr. Arun M. Sajal available on company's website. The Board Members
Jain Jain Sureka dJain and Senior Management staff have affirmed
510351 | 2,88 893 50 6,06,496 compliance with the sald code of conduct.
= The gap between two meetings did not exceed one 3. Andit Commities:
hundred and twenty days. a) The audit commithee of the Company is constituted in

» The terms and condiions of appointment of the line with the provisiens of Regulation 18 of SEBI
Independent Directors are disclosed on the webslte of Listing Regulations, read with Secton 177 of the
the Company. Companies Act, 2013.

s Code of Conduct b) The terms of reference of the audit commitiee are
The Boerd has lald down a code of conduct of broadly asunder:

13
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Owvarsight of the Company's financlal reporting
process and the disdosure of ils financial information
1o engure that the financlal statements are correct.
Hecommendatlon for appointment, remuneration
and terms of appointment of auditors of the compamy.
Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any
other sarvices renderad by the statutory auditors.
Reviewing, with the management, the annual
financlal statements and auditors report thereon
before submission to the board for approval.
Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly
financial statements before submission to the board
for approval

Approval or any subsequent medification or
transactions of the company with related party.
Evaluation of internal inandal comrols.

Establish a vigil mechanism for directors and
employees to report genuine concerns in such manney
asmay be prescribed.

Heview the Information required as per SEBI Listing
Regulations.

The composition of Audit Committee and the delails
of the mueeting atlended by the Direclors are given
below:

Name of Member |Designation] NMNaof |Atendance

Commitiee
meetings held)

Mr. Arun Surekn Chebimen

Mr. Narendra K. Miltal | Mernber

in) tnj
) Wy

Mr. Govind Parmar Mernbse & 5

During the year under review, Audit Lommittee met o
times on the following datea: 30-Men-2015, 12-Aug-2015,
18-Sept-2015, 05-Now-2015 and 13-Feb-2016.

i, Nomington snd Resuneration Commmittee:

Pursuart to Section 178 {1) of the Companies Act,

2013, the company has the Nomination and Remuinets -
tion Committee.

i, The Nominaton and Remuneration Committee
comprised of three independent directors” viz Mr. Arun
Sureka (Chairman), Mr. N, K Mittal (Member) and Mr.

Govind Parmar (Member),
Name of Member |Designaion] NMNo.of |Attendance
Committee
meetings held|
My, Ann Sk Chalrman 1 1
Mr. Narendra K. Mittal | Member 1
Mr. Govind Parmar Member 1

MNominatiom and Remuneration Commitiee met once on
13-Feb-2016.

G, The brosd terms of the role of the Nomination ard

Remuneration Committes are s under:

1. Formulate the ariterla for determining qualifica-tions,
positive attributes and independence of a director,

2. Recommend to board a policy relating to the
remuneration of the directors, key managerial and
senior managerlal persennel,

3. Formulate criteria for evaluation of mdependent
divectors and board.

4. Devisi Kk 1 diversit

5. Recommend to the board appointment, removal of

6. Successlon planning for replacing Key Executives
anvd overseeing.

7, Any othey mather 29 board may declde from time to tims,

lv. Performance evaluation criterla for Independent
Divectors:
The perfrrmance evahiation eriterla for independent
directors is determined by the Nominaton and
Remuneration Committee. The list of factors that may
be evaluated Include participation and contribution by
director, commitment, effecive deployment of
knowledge and expertise, relationship with
stakeholders, Integrity and confidentiallty and
independence of judgment and behavior

v HRemuneration Polley:
The remuneration policy of the company enable o
attract, retain End motlvate employess to achleve
reguls,

The non-executive divectors {Induding Independent
directors] will recefve remuneration by way of fees for
attending meefing of boards or committes therect, as
decided by the commilttee from time to time subject to
the limits defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and
rules,

The remuneration of the Managing Director &
Exgoutive Director me determine by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, comprising of three
independent directors. The commission payable to
Managing Director & Executive Director s directly
linked with the performance of the company. The
commission payable to them is governed by the
member's resalution passed at the A.GM, held on 26-
07-2012 & 22-08-2013 respectively. The commission
is payable after approval of the accounts by
shareholders In the Annual General Meeting,

The Company does not have any Emplovee Stock
Opton Scherne,

Annual Remuneration payable to employees
comprises two parts- fixed component and bonus
component based on the extent of achievement of the
inlividuals and the performance of the business unit,
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vi_ Directors' Remuneration during 2015-16
Name of Director Salary | Benefits | Commissi | Meeting | Total Service Contract, Notice
& on Fees Period, Serverance Fees
HRA
Mr, 5. K. Jain 1 728000 451789 5195433 MNil | 7375222 Contractual-retirement
by rotation
Mr, Sajal Jain 1728000 166547 5480675 Mil | 7375222 Contractual-retirement
by rotation
Mrs. Sushila Jain 23000 33000 Retirement by Rolation
Mr. Arun Surcka 54000 54000 Nom Rotational
Mr. N, K. Mittal 45000 45000 --
Mr. G.R. Parmar 48000 48000

is not separately determined hence not included above.

notice by elther side.
3.
by edther side.
4.

being eligible, offer himself for re-appomtment.

i mmmmmmmmmmfmmmm&Mmmm
. The Managing Director’s contract 15 for 5 years wee f, 01.04.2012 which may be determined by six menths'

The Executive Director's contract is for b years w.e.f. 26.05.2013 which may be determined by six months' notice
Mr. 5. K Jaln, Chalrman and Managing Director, reitres by rotathon at the ensulng Annual General Meeting and

Addiional informetion on directors recommended for re-appoiniment as required under Regulation
36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligntion and Disclosure requiremenis) Regulations, 20156

Name Mr, 5. K, Jain

Date of Birth 11-05-1943
23001980
B.5¢

mm]mnymlmﬂn

M S K Jain, mmm&wmﬂmmwmmmmwwﬁﬂw
inceplion as promoter FOBTEGTE
Mdmmhhmmﬂhmmwﬂmww Hu

end director. He i responsible

m

MNor-executive

Mr 5. K dain is a father of Mr. Sajal Jait, Chief Executive & husband of Mrs. Sushila Jait,

§. Stalwholders Relationship Commiitws:
Pursuant to Section 178(5} of the Companles Act, 2013
and Regulation 20 of SEBI Listing Regulation, the
company has formed “Stakeholders Relationship
Committee”. The Committee specifically looks Into the
redressal of Shareholders / Investors Grievances, if any, lilke
grievances not addressed or Non-receipt of Annual
Report/dividend warrants etc. and cther related lssues.
The composition of Shareholders' Grievances Commmittee
anvd the detalls of the meeting attended by the Divectons are
ghven below:

Narme of Member |Designation)] Noof |Atendancs
Committee
meetings held|
Mr, Narencira K, Mtital | Chatrman 2 2
Mr, Arun Sureka Member 2 2
Mry, Sushils Jain Member 2 2
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During the year under review, the Committee met 2 times
on following dates: 05-Nov-2015 & 13-Feb-2016. At the
year-end there were no grievances pending apainst
COMPAINy.

Number of Complaints received during the year ended
31.03.2016 -5, Number of Complaints not resolved up
to 31st March 2016 — Nil, Number of Share Transfers
pending as on 31.03.2016 - NIL, Number of Share
Transfers pending for more than 30 days as on
31.03.2016- Nil

Name & Designation of Compliance Officer-
Mr. Pravin Chaven-Company Secretary

6. Corporate Soclal Responsibilty Commbiee:
Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 20113 read

with Companies {Comporate Sodal Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014, committes was formed by the Board of
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Directors as “Corporate Social Responsibility Committee”,
The composition of Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee and the details of the meeting attended by the
Directors are given below:

Mame of Member |Designation| MNo.of |Attendance
Committee
meetings held
Arun Sureka Chairman 3 3
Sushila Jain Member 3 3
Govind Parmar Member 3 3
Sajal Jain Member 3 3

During the year under review, the Committee met 3 times
on following dates: 12-Aug-2015, 18-Sep-2015 & 19-Mar-
2016.

7. General Body Meetings:
a) Annual General Meeting
The last three Annual General Meetings were held
as under:
Financial | Date Time Venue No. of
Year Special
Resolution
2012-13 |22.08.2013{1.00 p.m|SN D T Universit{ One
Juhu, Mumbai
2013-14 |27.09.2014{1.00 p.m|S N D T University (Qne
Juhu, Mumbai
2014-15 |22.08.2015(1.00 p.m)S N D T University  ny;.
Juhu, Mumbai
b) Postal Ballot

No postal ballot was conducted during the year ]

8. OtherDisclosures:

i.  There were no transactions of material nature with the
Promoters, Directors or the Management, subsidiaries or
relatives etc. that may have potential conflict with the
interest of the Company at large. For details of related
party transactions refer financial accounts.

ii. There were no instances of non-compliance nor have
any penalties, strictures been imposed by Stock Exchange
or SEBI or any other statutory authority during the last
three years on any matter related to Capital markets.

iii. The board has approved a policy for related party
transactions which has been uploaded on the Company's
website www indoborax.com/head-rpt-policy.php. The
related party fransactions have been approved by the
Audit Committee.
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iv. The Whistle Blower policy is in place, and it is hereby
affirmed that no personnel has been denied access to the
audit committee.

v. The Company has also adopted Policy on
determination of material subsidiary, which has been
uploaded on the Company's website :

www.indoborax.com/images/Policy-for-determining-

material-subsidiary.pdf

The company has complied with the mandatory require-
ments. It has fulfilled the following discretionary
requirements as prescribed in Schedule Il of Part E of the
SEBI Listing Regulations:
1. The auditor's report on statutory financial
statements of the company are unmodified.

Separate posts of Chairperson and Chief Executive
Officer: The office of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the company are held by
different individuals.

&

Declaration regarding compliance by board
members and senior management personnel
with the Company's Code of conduct:

The members of the board and senior management
personnel have affirmed the compliance with Code
applicable to them during the year ended 31st March,
2016. The annual report of the Company contains a
certificate by the Managing Director and CEQO in terms
of SEBI Listing Regulations on the compliance
declarations received from Independent Directors,
Non-executive Directors and Senior Management.

10. Means of Communication:

The Company communicates with its shareholders on
an annual basis through the Annual Report. The
quarterly, half-yearly, nine monthly and vearly results
are published in newspaper -Economic Times in
English language & in Maharashfra Times in Marathi
MNews Paper.

No presentations have been made to institutional
investors or to the analysts.

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report
forms part of Directors Report.
As required, information relating to quarterly financial
results, shareholding pattern etc. were provided to
BSE Ltd and is available on website
www.indoborax.com & www bseindia.com
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11. General Information for Shareholder:
Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be
held on 13th August, 2016 at 1.00 p.m. at Mini
Auditorium of S.N.D.T. Women's University, Sir
Vithaldas Vidya Vihar, Opp. Lido Cinema, Juhu Road,
Santacruz (W), Mumbai-400 049,

b. Financial Calendar for the financial year 2016-
17 (tentative)

Results for First Quarter : On or befare

14th August 2016
Results for Second Quarter  : On orbefore

14th November, 2016
Results for Third Quarter : Onor before

14th February, 2017
Resulisfortheyearending : Onorbefore
31stMarch 2016 30th May, 2017
c. Date of Book Closure : 5th August, 2016

to 13th August, 2016

(both days inclusive)

d. Dividend payment Date : Dividend, if declared,
shall be paid/credited on

or after 13th August, 2016

e. Listing on Stock . BSE Ltd, (BSE)
Exchanges Mumbai, (The Kolkatta
Stock Exchange Ltd. -
Delisting confirmation
from The Kolkatta
Stock Exchange is still
awaited)
f. Stock Code : 524342, BSE Limited.
g. Depositories + NSDL and CDSL
h.ISIN No. : INEB03D01013
i. Listing Fees . Paid for the BSE Ltd
for 2016-17
j. Custodial Fees to + Annual Custody fees for
Depositories the financial year 2016-
17 will be paid to NSDL
& CDSL on receipt of the
invoice.
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k. Monthly high / low price at The Bombay Stock
Exchange Ltd (Financial Year 2015-16):

BSE BSE
Hang I?[EI; I.[-g:; Sensex | Sensex

High Low
Apiil 2015 1390 00|244.50|29094.61 | 2689754
May-2015  1397.90|320.00|28071.16 | 26423.99 |
June-2015 365 00|270.00| 27968.75 | 26307.07
July-2015 344.20|278.20 | 28578.33 | 27416.39
August-2015  |339.90(270.00 | 28417.59 | 25298.42
September-2015318.30|278.00 | 26471.82 | 24833.54
October-2015  |322.00|285.00 | 27618.14 | 26168.71
MNovember-2015 |315.00| 270.00 | 26824 .30 | 25451 .42
December-2015 | 355.30| 286.00 | 26256.42 | 24867.73
January-2016  |341.00|275.00| 26197.27 | 23839.76
February-2016 |318.00|270.60 | 25002.32 | 22494 61
March-2016  |315.90|288.00 | 25479.62 | 23133.18

l. Registrar and Transfer (R & T) Agents:

Sharex Dynamic (India) Pvt. Ltd, Unit — 1, Luthra Indl.
Premises, Andheri Kurla Road, Safed Pool, Andheri (E),
Mumbai — 400 072, Ph. +91-22- 28515606 / 28515644,
E-mail; sharexindia@wvsnl.com

m. Share Transfer System:

Presently, fortmightly cycle is followed for processing
transfer requests and Share transfers are approved by
designated officers to whom the authority has been
delegated by the Board of Directors. The company obtains
from a Company Secretary in Practice, half-yearly
certificate of compliance with the share transfer formalities
as required under listing regulation and file a copy of the
said certificate with Stock Exchange.

n. Dematerialization of Shares:

As on 31-Mar-2016, 2780900 equity shares representing
86.66 % of the Company's paid-up equity share capital is
held in electronic form.

During the year under review, the Company's equity shares
have been actively traded on BSE Limited.
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o. Distribution of Shareholding as on 31-Mar-2016: Shareholding Patiern as on 31-Mar-2016
Number of eqully N"‘ﬂ of & No. Of - Sr. Category No. of -It::l
ahares held holders Shares No. of Holders Sharas Shares
I [100 3008 | 6843 | 309198 | 963 1 |Indian 17,78342 | 5542
100 [200 914 1588 | 171849 | 5.36 Promotars
201 [s00 540 9,38 203558 | 6,34 2 |Financlal 3500 | 010
501 [1000 189 328 151936 | 4.73 Inst/Mutual
1007 5000 144 250 326407 | 1017 Rundsy B"_ ths
sool 11000 16 | ozs | 111855 | 349 | | 3 Ewmﬂmmm 165210 | &.15
10001 100000 10 0.17 320755 | 10.00 4 |Other Corporate 1,062,349 3.19
100001 Above 4 0.07 |1613442 | 5028 | |Bodies
Total 5755 | 100,00 | 3209000 | 100.00 5 |Indian Public 1159421 | 36.13
| In Physlcal Form 428100 | 13.34 6_|Clearing Members 178 | o001
In Electronic Form 2780900 | B6.66 Total 32,09,000 | 100.00

. Ouistanding GDRs / ADRe /Warranis or any
Convertible instruments:
The Company has not issued any GDRs/ ADR/
Warrants or any Convertible Instruments.

Location of Plani Facllities:
Plant locations : Plot No, 43 to 46, 47A, 48,

48A Industial Estate Sector I,

Pithampur — 454 775, (M.P)
" The Complianee Officer,

Members are also advised to update their
sorrespondence addvess in their demat accounts in
case of their holding In alectronic form or Inform
their latest comespondence address to the Registrars
In cese of holding in physical form,

Information in respect of such unclaimed dividend
due frr trarsfer to the Insstors Educatlon and

Indo Borax & Chemicala Lid., 302, Link Rose, Linking
Road, Santacruz (West}, Mumbai — 400 054, Ph No :
+91-22- 2648 9142; Fax No, +91-22- 2648 9143
Emaill: complisnceofficer@indoborax. cam

Unclaimed Divldend Amounte:

Pursuant to the provislon of sectlon 123 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the dividend for the following
Years, which remain unclaimed for seven vears, will be
transferved to Investors Education and  Protection
Fund ([EPF} established by the Central Government
pursuant to section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Members who have not so far encashed their dividend
warrant(s) are requested to seek revalidation of
dividend warrants In writing to the Company at [ts
Registered Office immediately. Members are requested
to node that no claims shall le against the company in
respect of any amounts which were unclaimed and
unpaid for period of seven years from the dates that
they first becomes due for payment and no payment
ghall be made In respect of such dalms.

Protedion Fund (IEPF) Isas follows:
Financial Y ear Amount Due for transfer

outstanding as on | to lEPF on
31032016 (Rs.)

2008-2004 4,97 .605.00 01/ 10/2016

2008-2010 5,20.466.00 O/ 102017

2000-2011 4.71.708.00 22092018

20011-2012 6,15,207.00 29/08/2019

20012-2013 7,36,687.00 25/09/2020

2003-2014 5,62.606.00 311002021

2014-2015 4,74,833.00 25/09/2022

May 30, 2016
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Disclosures with respect to demat suspense
asccount/unclaimed suspense account: There are
no shares in any demat suspense aceount or undaimed

suspense account,
By Order of the Board of Divectors

§. K. Jain
Managing Director
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ANNEXURE 1 TO DIRECTOR'S REPORT

1. A brief outline of Corporate Social Responsibility Policy:

Social and environment responsibility has always been at the forefront of Indo Borax & Chemicals Lid.'s operating
philosophy. We believe that to succeed, an organization must maintain highest standards of corporate behavior towards
its employees, consumers and societies in which it operates. We are in the opinion that CSR underlines the objectives of
bringing about difference and adding values in our stakeholder's lives.
Indo Borax's Corporate Social Responsibility Policy is rooted in the Company's core values of quality, reliability and trust
guided by best practices, and driven by our aspiration for excellence in the overall performance of our business.
The CSR are activities undertaken by the company within the broad framework of Schedule VI of the Companies Act,
2013. The C5SR activities carried out in F Y 2015-16 such as mid-day meal program, setting up homes for orphans, poor,
needy and tribal children, creating sanitation facilities in schools in backward areas, safe drinking water facilities in rural
areas.
2.The composition of CSR committee: The CSR committee of the board of directors comprising of Mr. Arun Sureka,
Chairman of the Committee, Mr. Sajal Jain, Mr. Govind Parmar and Mrs, Sushila Jain.
3. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years for the purpose of computation of CSR:
Rs. 16,74,97,840/-
4, Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above): Rs. 33.49,957/-
5. Details of CSH spent during the financial year:

a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year: Rs. 33,49,957/-

b) Amount unspent: NIL

c} Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year: Details attached
6. In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three
financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reason for not spending the amount in its
Board report:
Amount unspent during the year: Refer para 5(b). During the vear Company has spent Rs. 63,01,107/- towards CSR
activities, out of which Rs. 27 47,154/- were towards unspent amount of the financial year 2014-15 and the balance
amount of Rs. 35,53,953/- were spent for the financial year 2015-16. The manner in which the amount spent please refer
para5(c),
7. A responsibility statement of the CSR committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR
policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the Company:
We hereby declare that implementation and monitoring of the CSR policy are in compliance with C5R objectives and
policy of the Company.

Sajal Jain Arun Sureka
Executive Director Chairman, CSR Committee
30" May, 2016
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5 [c). Details of amount spent on CSR activities during the financial year 2015-16

Sr. | C5R project | Sector in Project or | Amount Amount Cumulative | Amount

MNo | or activity which the programs | outlay Spent on the | expenditure | Spent direct
identified/ project is {1) Local | (budget) project or up to the or through

covered Area or Project or | programs reporting Implementing
other {2} | programs Sub Heads: | period Agency
specify wise 1. Direct
the State Expenditu
and re on
district project
where 2. Overhead
project
was
undertake
n

1 Eradicating | Education Vrindava 45,00,000 45,00,000 45,00,000 | Implementing
malnutritio n, agency-

n through Bellary, Akshay Patra
Mid-Day Cuttack, Foundation
meal Hubli

Program

2 Setting-up Education MNandgoa 15,000,000 15,00,000 15,00,000 | Implementing
homes for n, Tal- agency-
orphans, Mulshi, SAMPARC
poor needy Pune, [Social Action
& tribal Maharash for Man
children tra Power

Creation)

3 Creating Education Dist- 1,80,000 1,880,000 1,80,000 | Implementing
Sanitation & Health - | Vada, agency-Lions
facilities in | Sanitation Thane, Club of Beach
schools in Maharash Heaven
backward tra
districts

4 Drinking Healthimak | Ara, 1.21,107 1,21,107 1,21,107 | Implementing
Water ing Patna, agency-Shri

available Bihar Maina Sunder
safe Bhawan DJD
drinking Trust
water

Total Spending on CSH 63,01,107
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ANNEXURE Il TO DIRECTOR'S REPORT
FORM NO. AOC -2

[ Pursuant to Clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred
to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms- length transactions under
third proviso thereto,
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm'’s length basis.
Sr.| MNameof | Natureof | Duration Salient Justification | Date of | Amount Date on which special

Mo, the related | Contracts or of the terms of | for entering | approval| paid as | Resolution was passed in
party and |arrangements| contracts’ | the contracts| into such by the |advance| general meeting as required
nature of |or transactions| arrangem | or arrange | contracts or | Board if any under first proviso to

relationship ents or ments or | arrangements section 188
transactionsy transactions jor transactions
including
Value

Mot Applicable
2. Details of material coniracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis.
Sr.] Nameof | Natureof | Duration Salient Justification | Date of | Amount Date on which special

Mo/ the related | Contracts or of the terms of | for entering | approval| paid as | Resolution was passed in
party and |arrangements| contracts/ | the contracts| intosuch | bythe |advance| general meeting as required
nature of |or transactions| arrangem | or arrange | contracts or | Board | if any under first proviso to

relationship ents or ments or | arrangements section 188
transactions transactions |or transactions
including
Value

MNot Applicable
ANNEXURE III TO DIRECTOR'S REPORT
Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended 31st March, 2016
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies | Management and Administration} Rules, 2014]

1 REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

ij CIN [24100MH1980PLC023177

iy Registration Date 23-09-1980

iii) Name of the Company Indo Borax & Chemicals Limited
iv] Category/Sub-Category of the Company Public Company/Limited by Shares
v) Address of the Registered office 8 Contact Details 302, Link Rose, Linking Road,

Santacruz (West), Mumbai -400 054
Tel-2648 9142 | Fax-2648 9143

vi) Whether Listed Company Yes

vii) Name, Address and contact details of Registrar and Sharex Dynamic (India) Pvt Ltd

Transfer Agent, if any Unit -1, Luthra Ind. Premises

Andheri Kurla Road,
Safed Pool, Andheri (E)
Mumbai-300072
Tel-2851 5606/44

Il PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 22851 2885
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:

Sr. N Name and description NIC Code of the % total turnover
r. INO. of main products/service product/service of the Company
; 202-Manufacture of other
1 Boric/Boron Products cbi el wiadiists 100%
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III PARTICUALRS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPAN

Sr.
No.

MName and addrass
of the company

CIN

[ Associaies

% of aharea
held

Applicable
Section

1

Indoborax [nfrastructure Private Limited]

302, Link Rose, Linking Road,
Santacriz (West), Mumbal -400 054

U45400MH200SPTC197583

Subsidiary

100%

2(87)(i)

IV SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equlty share capiial Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
I Category-wise share holding

Catenoey of Shareholders

e ol Shares hold o the bogirming of the year

M of S hires hadd 8 the end al the vear

change
chring  tha
year #

Lhermat

Physical

Tatal % o

shares

I-:f..'um Jormant

Fhysical T'atal

of folal

sharis

A Promoters
1 Indian
a} | IndividualsHUF
b Central Goad
o) | Stabe Gout.
d} | Bodies Corporate
&) Banks/H
f1 Any Oiher {Specify)

Sub-Total (A) (1):-
2 Forelgn

a) |MNEHndviduak

bl | Others-Individuals

c) Bodies Corporate

d} |Banks/Fl

@) | Other (Speciby)
Sub-Total (A) (2):-
Total shareholding of Promoter
As AT} +A (2)

B Public Shareholding

1 Institutions

a) |Mutual Furds

b} |Banks/H

¢) | Caniral Gest
d) ‘Stabe Gowt
€ Menture Capital Funds
fl | Irewarce Companies
al Flls

hh | Fovelgn Venture Capiial Funds
11 Oithers (Speciiy)
Sub-Total (B) (1):-

2 Mo Institutional
n) | Bodes Corporntes

1] Irclian

i) | Chetsens

by Indivicuals

1] Incdivéduals shareholders
helding nominal share cagital
upta Hs. 1 Lakh

i) Indlivéduals shareholders
hedding nominal share capital
in excess of Hs, 1 Lakh

cl |Dthers (Speficy)- Clearng Mambers
Crthers (Speticy)- MR

Sub-Total (B) (2):-

Total Public shareholding

B= B(1)+B (2)

C  Shares held by custodian for
GDHs & ADHs

Grand Total (A + B + C)

17,7834

17, s34 bl

17,708,342

17,718,392

20417

T

177834 5b.al7

TTTRHE [iX

Bb417

17,758,342

17,78, 342 55.417

17,778,342 -

17.78,342

55.417

S50

S50 0109

0108

3,500

3500 (1K

3500

0,108

1.(F1LG58

755,764

84762
0,980
36,36

20600

3,07 500

106,000

1,430,258 4059

1063 264 33,13

2641
0.2
4437

B, 702
6,480
1,42 384

H1,749 20,600

736,129 ALK

123,02
17s

61,410 1,004, 50K

100,360,320

3189

Jid. 2t

SH30
00
2. 148

(0BT

[LEE=% ]

1.1%
{1157
¥l

993,058

434,100

14.27,158 44.474

10002 558 4.24.600

1427158

44479

9.93,068

437,600

14,30 658 44583

1002 568 4. 25,100

14,350,668

44.583

27,711,400

4,37,600

1M (KD

27,80, MM 4,28, 100

1040, 0D
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1

-

il) Shareholding of Promoters
Sr. |Shareholders Mame Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year % change
Me, during the
wear
Mo, of Shares %  of tofall™ of shares| Mo, of Shares % of totalls of shares
shares of the|pledged’ shaves of the|pledged/
Company encumbered company encumbered
o total shares to total shares
L|Sushilkumar Naimbumar Jain 5,10,351 15,904 - 5.10,351 15,904
2|5ushila Sushilkumar Jain 2 .88 RO3 0.003 2,88 893 6.003
3l5ajal Sushilkumar Jain 606,496 18.900 6,06,496 18.900
4lSreelekha Sajal Jain 207,702 6,472 207,702 6.472
5 Saumya Sajal Jaln 28,000 0.873 28,000 0.873
GlSushilkumar Maimbkumar Jain-HUF 6,400 1446 446,400 1.446
T15ajal Sushilkumar Jain-HUF G0,500 2820 60,500 2820
Total 17.78,342 55417 17,778,342 55417

i) Changs in promoters shareholding ( Pleass speciy, Hf thers s no change )

Sr. Shareholding at the beginning| Shareholding at the end of the
No of the year vear
MNo. of Shares | of total|Mo. of Shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year 17.78,342 55417 17,78,342 55417
Date wise increase/decrease
in Promoters sharehlding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase or decrese ( e.q.
allotment/transfer/bonus/ sweat
equity etc, - -
At the end of the year 17.78,342 55.417 17,78, 342 55417

Mote ; There is no change in the total shareholding of the promoters between 01.4.2015 to 31.03.2016

v)Shareholding pattemn of top ten shoreholdere

(other then divrectyre, Promoters and holders of ADRs and GDHs):

a1
M

Name

Shareholding Date

Mo
Fiy! tha
heginning
101/04/15)
End  of the
wear

13103 16)

ol Shares|'s

ol I|||.T|

shares of the

company'

Incraase
Decrase In

Sharehaling

Reason

Cummulative Shareholding

MNo. of Shares

% of toral
shares of the

company

1|Inda Perlite Pwt Ltd B.100 0.252] 01-04-2015 Mil Movement
B 100 02kd]  31-03-20146 during the vear H.100 0452
2|Kantilal Patel and Co. Consultancy 6163 0192 01-04-2015 - G.163
Put Ltd 17-04-2015 400000 [Tranber 10,163
10,163 0317 31-03-2014 10,163 0.317
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et
3|Prtibhuti Vinihit Ltd 15,000 0467 O1-04-2015 15,000
- 22-01-2016 {15,000} [ Transfer - ﬂ.{]{][]|
4IPS Securities Private Limited 12,500 02901 31-08-2016 Mil Movermnent 12 500
12 500 0390 31-08-2016 during the vear 12 500 0.390
ALt Col Indur Mallkani 5,433 02631 01-04-2015 - il Movemnent B.433
B8.433 0.263] 31-08-2016 . during the year B.433 0.263
GlMohta Concerns Lid 9,000 02801 01.04-2015 - Ml Mevement 9,000
9,000 02801 31-0G6-2016 . during the year 9,000 0.2B0
7|Prabhuraj Shankar Hiremath 4,200 0151 01-04-2015 . 4,200 0.121
24-04-2015 1,437 |Transfer 5,637 0.176
01-05-2015 838 |Transfer 5,725 GI.ITH|
22-05-2015 L 100 [Transfer 6,825 0.213
26-06-2015 175 |Transfer 7.000 0.218
04-09-2015 837 |Transfer 7.887 ﬂ.?'—']f.-|
11-09-2015 613 |Transfer B.500 CI.E{'.-.'5|
09-10-2015 500 |Transfer 9,000 GI.EB'L'.I|
16-10-2015 3530 |Transfer 9350 ﬂ.2‘5‘1|
23-10-2015 100 |Transfer 9.450 D.29'4|
30-10-2015 S50 [Transfer 9500 9.296|
06-11-2015 100 |Transfer 9,600 CI.E“':J?|
31-12-2015 500 |Transfer 10,100 9.315|
10,100 0.315 31-03-2016 10,100 03 15|
|
|
B|P Suryakant Shares & Stock Brokers 12,500 0.390 01-04-2015 - 12,500 {!I.FLEEI|
05-06-2015 1,000 |Transfer 13,500 El.421|
1,000 0.031 31-03-2016) (12,500} | Transfer 1,000 {!l.{l'31|
|
|
HDeenar Krishnarao Toraskar 627 0020 | 21-08-2015 - 627 0.018]|
28-08-2015 790 |Transfer 1,417 0.044
29-01-2016 3,000 ITransfer 4417 0.138
05-02-2016 2031 |Transfer 6,445 0,201
12-02-2016 1,170 [Transfer 7618 0,237
19-02-2016 1,602 ITransfer 0.220 0,287
26-02-2016 1,213 [Transfer 10,433 0.325
10433 0.325 31-03-2016) - Transfer 10,433 0,325
10|Deepa Prabhuraj Hiremath 20080 0,065 01-04-2015 . 21080 0.060
24.04-2015 200 |Transfer 2,280 0.071
15-05-2015 100 [Transfer 2,580 0,074
22.05-2015 637 |Transfer 3017 0,054
29-05-2015 LK} | Transfer 3,117 0.097
19-06-2015 300 |Transfer 3417 0.106
26-06-2015 200 |Transfer 3.617 0.113
0-06-2015 200 |Transfer 3.817 (‘.l.ll'E'-'|
03-07-2015 L | Transfer 3,917 ﬁ.122|
10-07-2015 100 |Transfer 4017 0.125|
21-08-2015 285 |Transfer 4. 302 0. 134|
2B-08-2015 50 [Transfer 4 352 0. 136|
04-09-2015 148 |Transfer 4,500 0. 14{]|
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-

16-10-2015 150 |Transfer 4 650 0. 145|
30-10-2015 609 |Transfer 5,259 0.164
06-11-2015 983 |Transfer 6,242 0,195
13-11-2015 100 |Transfer f,342 0.198
08-01-2016 B00 |Transfer 7.142 0.223
15-01-2016 400 Transfer 7542 0.235
22-01-2016 275 |Transfer 7.817 0.244
29.01-2016 200 |Transfer B.O17 0.250
05-02-2016 283 |Transfer B.A00 0.259
19.02-2016 175 |Transfer B.475 0.264
26-02-2016 LG | Transfer B.575 0.267
04-03-2016 125 |Transfer 8,700 0.271
5,700 0271 31-08-2016 - |Transfer B.700 0.271
L [Vunatheya Bidadi Sheshadr 6,745 0210 10-04-2015 . 6,745 0.194
24.04-2015 0,089 |Transfer 15,834 0.453
01-05-2015 166 |Transfer 16,000 0.499
08-05-2015 450 Transfer 16450 0.513
15-05-2015 7527 |Transfer 23,977 0.747
22.05-2015 446 |Transfer 24 423 0.761|
29.05-2015 145 |Transfer 24 568 0.766
05-06-2015 2,562 |Transfer 27,130 0.845
10-07-2015 3,000 Transfer 30,130 0.939
17-07-2015 54 |Transfer 30,184 {!I.E‘41|
0d-12-2015 (200} [ Transfer 29 954 9.934|
11-12-2015 (2,087} Transfer 27.897 0.569|
31-03-2016 . Transfer 27.897 G.Bl‘.-9|
|
12]1Anju Anand Jain 42091 1.312 01-04-2015 . Mil Movement I
42091 1.312 31-03-2016 - during the year 42 091 1.312 |
|
|
13)Anushree Anand Jain 42671 1.330 ] 01-04-2015 - |Mil Movemnent |
42671 1.330 | 31-03-2016 - during the year 42,671 1.330 |
|
|
l4|Anchal Anand Jain 0 589 1,299 01-04-2015 . Mil Movemnent |
0 559 1,299 31-03-2016 . during the vear 0 580 0,299 |
15|Chetan Rasiklal Shah 9 800 0,305 01-04-2015 . 9 800 0,305
15-01-2016 {7.866) [Transfer [ 1,934 0,060
1,934 0060 | 31-08-2016 - 1,934 03,060
16JK G Soman 6,772 0.211 01-04-2015 Transfer 6,772 0.211
01-05-2015 [1}|Transfer 6,771 0.211
15-05-2015 (341} | Transfer 6,430 0,200
22.05-2015 (4300 Transfer 5,000 0.187
05-06-2015 941} Transfer 5.059 0.158
5.059 L1583 | 31-08-2016 5,059 0.158
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v)Shareholding of Director £ Key Monagerinl Personnel

=1 MName Sharehalding Date Increase Reason Cummulative Sharehalding
Mo ‘Decresa in during the year {01, 4/2015
Shareholing o 31/03720146)
Mo, of Shares|™ of odal Na. of Shares T of fotal
ai thelshares of the shaves of the
heéginning Company company
(0104 15)
'End af the
(REH
(310034 16)
1 |Sushifumar Jain 5.10.351 15 5 071082015 Mil Mavement
Managing Directar 5,101,451 15,59k 31042010 cluring the vear 4,100,451 15,4904
2[Sajal Jain 0,16, 496G 18,9001  01-04-2015 Nil Movement
Executive Director & Chiet Financial LER R i 18590 31-03- 2008 during the year 6,006,459 15.510
Oificer
S[5ushila Jain Pl OS] O1-04-2015 MNil Movement
Mon Executive Director 2,588,893 QOS] 31-03-2016 during the vear 2,58, 593 QS
4{Arun Sureka 1.2{4) 0037 01-04-2015 - transter 1,20
MNon Executive Director 24-03-2015 (OO0} [transfer 300
15-05-2015 (25000} |transter 5l
50 G002 31-03-2016 50 0.002
H|Marendra Fumar Mittal 01-03-2015 Nil Holding
Non Executive Director 31-03-2016
G|Govind Parmar 01-04-2015 Nil Holding
Mon Executive Director 31-03-201 6
7|Pravin Chavan 07-04-2015 - -
Compam Secretary 20-06-2015 1D |transfer 1
10 .00 31-03-2016 10 0.0

V INDEBTEDNESS

hﬂahﬁhmnfﬁemmmmmmw%n%tdmh{mt

Sacured Loan
excluding

deposil

Unsacured

Loans

Dapasits

Toeal

Indebiedness

Incdebtedness af the baginning of
the financlal veay | 010472015)
il Prinelpal Amount
111 Interest cue but med paked
Ui} Inferest accrued but nat dise

B0, 191,00

8,005, 191,04

[Total (1 + 11 + 1)

H.US, 191,00

H.0K5.191.1K]

Change In Indebiedness during the
tinancial year

Addition . -
Dreduction 8,5, 191 .0 (e, 191 .04)
Net Change 18,5, 191000 (E.AK5, 191.040)

[ndebtedness at the end of the financial
wear | 31/03/2016)

i) Principal Amount
i) | Interest due but not paid
i) Interest accrued but not due

Total (1 + 11 + 0l )
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Vl REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGFRIAL PERSONNEL

A Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole Time Director Amount in ¥
Sr. |Particulars of Remuneration Name of the MD/WTD Total Amount
No

S K Jain Sajal Jain #
1|Gross Salary

a) Salary as per provisions contained in 17,285,000 17.28,000 34.56,000

Section 17(1) of Income Tax Act, 1961

b} Value of perquisites under section 581,389 296,147 8,77,536

17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

c) Profit in liew of salary under section
17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 - - -
2|5tock Option - - -
Sweat Equity - - -
4|Commission
-as %o of profit 51,95,433 54,80,675 | 1,06,76,108
-others
5|0Others - - -
Total (A) 75,04,822 75,04,822 | 1,50,09,644
Ceiling as per Act Bs. 1,50,09.644/- (10% of Net Profit
calculated as per section 198 of the
Companies Act, 2013

# Mr. Sajal Jain, is a Whole Time Director and Chief Financial Officer of the company

[

B Remwuneration tn other Directors: Amount in ¥
Sr. |Particulars of Remuneration Mame of the Directors Total Amount
MNo

Arun Sureka [N K Mittal Sushila Jain Govind
Parmar

1 |Indipendent Directors
-Fees for attending board/ Committee

Meetings 54,000 45,000 - 48,000.00 1,47 000
- Commission - - .
- Others = . = . 2
Total (1) 54,000 45,000 : 48,000.00 1,47,000

2|Other Non-Executive Director

-Fees for attending board/ Commitlee

Meetings - . 33,000 . 33,000
- Commission - - - -
- Others - - - . -
Total (2) - - 33,000 . 33,000
Total (B)= (1)+(2) 54,000 45,000 35,000 48,000.00 1,580,000
Ceiling as per Act The sitting fees paid to above diretors is within the limits prescribed under

Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013
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C Remuneration to Key Manugerial Personnel other than MD/WTD

Amount in ¥
Sr. |Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial |Total Amount
Mo Personnel
Pravin Chavan
(Company
Secretary)
1 1Gross Salary
allSalary as per provisions contained
in section 17(1) of the Income Tax
Act, 1961 19,03,200 19,03,200
bi|Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961 93.500 93.500
c]|Profits in lieu of salary u/s 17(3) of
the Income Tax Act, 1961
2 |5tock Option
3 |Sweat Equity
4 |Commission
- As percentage of Profit
-other, specify
5 |Others, Specify - .
Total 19.96.700 | 19,96,700

Note: Mr. Sajal Jaln, WTO & CFO, whose remuneration detall s given in VI (A) above

VIl PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

There were no penalies/punishment/compounding of offences for the year ending 315t March, 2016
CERTIFICATE

To,

The Members Of

INDO BORAX & CHEMICALS LTD.,
547113, MITTAL INDUSTRIAL ESTATE,
M.VROAD, ANDYHERI (E),

MUMBAI - 400 059,

It is hereby certified and confirmed that as provided in SEBI Listing Requbations with the stock exchangs, the Board members and the
Senior Management petsortuel of the Compary have affirmed compliatice with the Code of conduct of the Comperny for the finardal
vear envded 31st Merch, 2016,

For INDO BOHAX 8 CHEMICALS LTD
(SK Juin)
Managing Director

Mumbal
May 30, 2016

CEO /CFOQ CERTIFICATION

The Board of Directors

Indo Borax & Chemicak Lid.,
302, Link Rose, Linking Road,
Sarmacruz (West)
Mumbai — 400 054

We hereby cerilfy that:

A

We have reviewed financial siaternents and the cash flow

staternent for the year ended 31* March, 2016 and that to

the best of our inowledge and bellef;

) Thes statemnents do not contadn amy materialhy unirue
statement ar omit any materlal fact ar contaln
statements that might he migeading

Il These sialements together prevent a true and fair view of
the Companys affais and are in compliance with

reguiations.
b. No transaction ls entered into by the company during the

year which Is faudulent, llegal orviolative of the Company's
cade of conduct.

We accept resporaiblitty for establishing and maintalning
internal controls for financlal reparting and that we have
evahiated the effectireness of the Internal contral spsterns of
the Company pertalning to financial reporting and we haswe
disclosed to the Auditors and the Awdit ¢commities,
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deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal lll) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become
controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the
taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. management or an employvee having a significant role in
the Company's internal control system owver financial
d. Wehave indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: reporting.
I} Significant changes, if any in internal control over
financial reporting during the year. 5. K. JAIN SAJAL JAIN
Il) Significant changes, if any in accounting policies during  (Managing Director) (Executive Director & Chief
the year and that the same have been disclosed in the  Mymbai, May 30, 2016 Financial Officer )

notes to the financial statements; and

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year Ended 31" March, 2016

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; and
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of
To, Securities) Regulations, 1998; [not applicable to the
The Members of company during the audit period)
Indo Borax & Chemicals Limited VI. Otherlaws specifically applicable to the company namely:
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of 1. Water { Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974;
applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 2. Air ( Prevention and Confrol of Pollution) Act, 1981;
corporate practices by Indo Borax & Chemicals Limited 3. Indian Boiler Act, 1923 and rules issued thereunder;
{hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was 4. The Electricity Act, 2003 and rules issued thereunder.
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for [ have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and of the following:
expressing my opinion thereon. i} Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company
Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, Secretaries of India with respect to board and general
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the meeting are yet to be specified under the Act by the Institute.
Company and also the information provided by the Company, ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the the BSE Limited.
conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, During the period under review the Company has complied
the Company has, during the audit period ended on 31* March, with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
2016, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder Guidelines, Standards, Listing Agreements etc. mentioned
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and above.
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and | further report that:
subject to the reporting made hereinafter: The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted
[ have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and with proper balance of Executive and MNon-Executive
returns filed and other records maintained by Indo Borax & Directors and Independent Directors. Adequate notice was
Chemicals Limited {“The Company”) for the period ended on given to all Directors at least seven days in advance to
31" March, 2016 according to the provisions of; schedule the Board Meeting. Agenda and detailed notes on
I. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made agenda were sent in advance, and a systermn exists for
thereunder; seeking and obtaining further information and clarification
. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ['SCRA') on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
and the Rules made thereunder; participation at the meeting,
. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye- Decisions at the Board Meetings, as represented by the
laws framed thereunder; management, were taken unanimously. [ further report that
IV Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules as per the explanations given to me and the represen-
and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign tations made by the management and relied upon by me
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
Commercial Borrowings; commensurate with the size and operations of the
WV The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under Company to monitor and ensure compliance with
the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
('SEBI Act') to the extent applicable to the Company :-
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial For Prasad Parab 8 Associates
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; Company Secretaries
b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition Prasad Parab
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992, Proprietor

¢. The Securities and EHChangE Board of India {Rﬁghﬁ'm to Mumbai 30th I"‘EW 2016 FCS No. 25324, CP No. 10235
29
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This Report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Appendix A and forms an integral part of this report,

To,

The members,

Indo Borax & Chemicals Ltd

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an
opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

| have followed the audit practices and process as were
appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correciness of the contents of the Secretarial records, The
verifications was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in Secretarial records. | believe that the process and
practices, [ followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

| have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of
financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, | have obtained the Management
representation about the Compliance of laws, rules and
requlations and happening of events eic.

“Appendix A"
The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other

applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility
of the management. My examinations was limited to the
verification of procedure on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the company.

For Prasad Parab & Associates

Company Secretaries

Prasad Parab

Mumbai Proprietor
30th May, 2016 FCS Mo, 25324, CP No. 10235

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

To the Members of
Indo Borax & Chemicals Lid.

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance by Indo Borax & Chemicals Ltd. (“the Company”),
for the year ended March 31, 2016, as stipulated in Clause 49 of
the Listing Agreement (“Listing Agreement”} of the Company
entered into with Stock Exchange for the period April 1, 2015 to
MNovember 30, 2015 and as per the relevant provisions of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing
Regulations") as referred to in Requlations 15(2) of the Listing
Regulations for the period December 1, 2015 to March 31, 2016.
The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the
responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited
to a review of the procedures and implementation thereof,
adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the
conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an
expression of an opinion on the financial statements of the
Company.

We have examined the relevant record of the Company in
accordance with the Generally Accepted Auditing Standards in
India, to the extent relevant, and as per the Guidance Note on

Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to our examination of the relevant records and the explanations
given to us and the representation made by the Directors and the
Management, we certify that the Company has complied with
the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause
49 of the Listing Agreements and regulation 17 to 27 and clauses
(b) to (i) of requlation 46(2) and paragraph C, D and E of
Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations for the respective
periods of applicability as specified under the paragraph 1
above, during the year ended March 31, 2016.
We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company,.

For V. §. Lalpuria & Company

Chartered Accountants

{Firm's Registration No.105581W)

Place: Mumbai V. S. Lalpuria
Date: May 30, 2016 Proprietor

Membership No. 15926

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial
statements of INDO BORAX & CHEMICALS LIMITED
{“the company”), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31"
March, 2016 and the staternent of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended, on that date, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information,

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters
stated in sub-Section 5 of section 134 of the Companies Act,

30

2013 (“the Act”) with respect to preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies |
Accounts ) Rules, 2014 { “the rules"). This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
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and other irreqularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone
financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are
required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Actand the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under sub-Section 10 of Section 143 of the
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obfain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstaternent of the financial staternents, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation
of the financial statements that give true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company's directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
standalone financial statements,

OPINION

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financlal statements
give the information reguired by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31" March, 2016 and its profit and its
cash flows for the vear ended on that date,

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY
REQUIREMENTS

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,
2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of
India in exercise of powers conferred by sub-section 11 of
section 143 of the Act, we enclose in the “Annexure A" a

31

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

g

t

statement of the matters specified In paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order.

As required by sub- section 3 of Section 143 of the Act, we
report that:

we have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements comply with the Accounting Standards
Specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the rules;

On the basis of written representations received from the
directors as on March 31, 2016, and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the Directors are disqualified as
on March 31, 2016, from being appointed as a director in
terms of sub-section 2 of Section 164 of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the international financial
controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operafing effectives of such controls, refer to our separate
reportin “Annexure B” and;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies { Audit and Auditors') Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

i)} There are no pending litigation which may impact on its
financial position in financial statements as at 31°
March, 2016.

ii)j The company did not have any long term contracts

including derivatives contracts for which there were any

material foreseeable losses,

iliy There has been do delay in transferring amount,

required to be transferred, to the Investors Education

and Protection Fund by the company.

For V. S, LALPURIA & COMPANY,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
{Firm No. 105581W)

(V. S. LALPURIA)
Mumbai Proprietor
30" May, 2016 Membership Mo. 15926
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(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

t

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Annexure A referred to in Independent Auditor's
Report to the members of the Company on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended
31" March, 2016, we report that:

{a) The company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets were physically verified during
the year by the Management. In our opinion,
physical verification is reasonable having regards to
the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
According to the information and explanations given
to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

{c) According to the information and explanations
given to us and the records examined by us and
based on the examination of the conveyance deed
provided to us, we report that, the title deeds,
comprising of all the immovable properties of
buildings which are free hold, are held in the name of
the Company as at the balance sheet date. In respect
of immovable properties been taken on lease and
disclosed as fixed assets in the financial statements,
the lease agreements are in the name of the
company.

As explained to us, the inventories have been
physically verified during the year by the
management at reasonable intervals and no material
discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

In our opinion and according to information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
other parties covered in the Register maintained
under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph
3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or provided
any guarantees or security to the parties covered
under Section 185 of the Act. The Company has
complied with the Provision of Section 186 of the Act
in respect of investments made or loans or
guarantee or security provided to the parties covered
under Section 186,

The company has not accepted any deposits from

the public in accordance with the provisions of the
sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed there
under.

(vi)

(vi)

We have broadly reviews cost records maintained by
the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules 2014 prescribed by the
Central Government under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that,
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and cost records
have been maintained. We have however, not made
a detailed examination of the cost records with view
to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

{a) According to the information and explanation
given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is
regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, emplovees state
insurance, income tax, ceniral excise, sales tax,
service tax, duty of customs, value added tax, cess,
professional tax and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities.
According to the information and explanations given
to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
provident fund, Employees State Insurance, income
tax, sales tax, service tax, central excise, duty of
customs, value added tax, cess, professional tax, and
other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31
March 2016 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

{b) According to the information and explanations
given to us, there are no dues of Income tax,
Provident fund, Employees state insurance, Sales
tax, Value added tax, Service tax which have not
been deposited with the appropriate authorities on
account of any dispute.

(viil) As the Company does not have any loans or

(ix)

(x)

borrowings from any financial institution or bank or
Government, nor has it issued any debentures, as at
the balance sheet date the provisions of Clause 3 (viii)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money by way of
initial public offer, further public offer (including debt
instruments) and term loans during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given
to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the course of our audit,
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(xi) According to the information and explanations give
to us and based on our examination of the records,
the Company has paid/provided for managerial
remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provision of section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations give
to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with sections 188 of the Act, where
applicable. The details of such related transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required under Accounting Standard (AS) 18,
Related Party Disclosures Specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014,

(xiv) According to the information and explanations give
to us and based on our examination of the records,

{xii)

3

the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the vear.

{xv) According to the information and explanations give
to us and based on our examination of the records,
the Company has not entered into non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with
him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable.

{xwvi) The Company is not required to be registered under
Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of
the orders are not applicable to the Company.

For V. S. LALPURIA & COMPANY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(Firm No. 105581W)

(V. S. LALPURIA)
Proprietor
Membership No. 15926

Mumbai
30" May, 2016

ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT - 31 MARCH, 2016
(Referred to in our report of even date)
REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (I) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE ACT

We have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of INDO BORAX & CHEMICALS
LIMITED (“the company”) as of 31 March, 2016 in
conjuncion with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company's management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (“ICAlI"). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act

2013 ("the Act”).

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143 (10) of the Act to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
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Controls, and, both issued by the ICAl. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal controls based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depends on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial
control system over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL

CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
A Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial
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directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL
FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls
over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, the Company has in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial control system
over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2016, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components
of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by [CAI

For V. S. LALPURIA & COMPANY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(Firm No. 105581W)

Mumbai

(V. S. LALPURIA)
30" May, 2016

Proprietor
Membership No. 15926
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH, 2016

Notes 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
a) Share Capital 1 3,20,90,000 3,20,90,000
b) Reserves & Surplus 2 82,72,63,119 74,14 63,389
Total (1) B85,93,53,119 77,35,53,389
2. NON-CURRENT LIA BILITIES
a) Deferred Tax Liabilities 3 55,56,384 6,46,790
b} Other Long-term Liabilities 4 73,80,000 75,24,000
Total (2) 1,29,36,384 81,70,790
3. CURRENT LIABILITIES
a) Trade Payables 5 3,82,39,005 4,21,66,610
b) Other Current Liabilities 6 2,54,38,589 2,50,37,254
c) Short-term Provisions 7 57.93,239 57,893,299
Total (3) 6,94,70,833 7,29,97,163
Total 94,17,60,336 85,47,21,342
I1. ASSETS
1. NON-CURRENT ASSETS
a) Fixed Assets
[ - Tangible Assets 8 20,35,53,179 10,88,01,176
Il - Capital Work in Progress 1,79,54,238 1,50,72,362
b) Non-current Investments 9 32,73,63,914 14,22,81,779
c) Long-term Loans & Advances 10 8,57,51,268 11,14,44,591
Total (1) 63,46,22,599 37,75,99,908
2. CURRENT ASSETS
a) Current Investments 11 - 55,60,542
b) Inventories 12 19,17,13,432 24,82,35,250
c) Trade Receivables 13 5,43,80,868 3,34,49,105
d) Cash & Bank Balances 14 4,37,14,889 15,87,84,728
e) Short-Term Loans & Advances 15 1,73,26,043 3,10,88,972
f) Other Current Assets 16 2,505 2,797
Total (2) 30,71,37,737 47,71,21,434
Total 94,17,60,336 85,47,21,342
Significant Accounting Policiaa 24
Cther Disclosuras & Notes 25
Ag per our report of even date attached
For V.3.LALPURIA & COMPANY  Sushila Jain - Director S.K.Jain
Charterad Accountants Chalman & Managing Director
(Firm No. 105581W)
Arun $.Sureka - Diractor Sajal S. Jain
Vice Chalrman &
V.S.LALPURIA Narandrakumar Mittal - Director Executive Director, CFO
Propristor
M. No. 15826
G. R. Parmar - Director Pravin Chavan
Mumbal, 30th May, 2016 Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2016
Rupees Rupees
Note 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15
INCOME
Revenue from Operations 17 65,36,68,668 72,60,89,511
Other Income 18 2,89,79,395 3,92,95,602
Total Income 68,26,48,063 76,53,85,113
EXPENSES
Cost of Raw Materials Consumed 19 35,22,57.052 39,00,14,866
Changes in Inventory 20 (1,15,55,248) (81,67,465)
Employee Benefits Expense 21 2,50,63,282 1,96,37,202
Finance Costs 22 1,77,221 2,86,148
Deprediation 8 1,24,49,319 1,14,68,134
Other Expenses 23 16,89,33,407 16,96,47,350
Total Expenditure 54,73,25,033 58,28,86,235
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 13,53,23,030 18,24,98,878
TAX EXPENSE
Current Tax 3,88,20,000 5,89,30,000
Deferred Tax 49,009,594 (6,63,621)
Prior Period Tax Adjustments - 29,779
Total Tax Expense 4,37,29,594 5,82,96,158
PROFIT AFTER TAX 9,15,93,436 12,42,02,720
Basic and diluted earning per share.(Face Value Rs. 10/- each) 28.54 38.52
Significant Accounting Policiaa 24
Other Disclosuras & Notes 25
As per our report of even date attached
For V.S.LALPURIA & COMPANY  Sushila Jain - Director S.K.Jain
Chartered Accountants Chalrman & Managing Director
(Firm No. 105581W)
Arun §.Sureka - Director Sajal S. Jain
Vica Chalman &
V.E.LALPURIA Narendrakumar Mittal - Director Executive Director, CFO
Proprietor
M. No. 15826
G. R. Parmar - Director Pravin Chavan
Mumbal, 30th May, 2018 Company Secretary
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2016
A
Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES .
Net Profit before tax and extraordinary items adjusted. 13,53,23,030 18,24,98,878
Adjustments for :
Depreciation 1,24,49,319 1,14,68,134
Profit/loss on sale/discarding of assets (4,00,650) .
Profitloss on sale of investment (15,584) (17,022)
Income from investments (2,71,13,292) (3,83,13,393)
Interest expense 1.77.221 2,586,148
{1,49,02 996) (2,65,76,133)
Operating profit before working capital changes 12,04,20,034 15,68,22 745
Adjusiments Tor :
Trade and other Receivables {2,09,31,471) (51,24,857)
Inventories 5,65,21,858 (15,34,83,102)
Loans & Advances 1,64,22,500 (1,31,61,019)
Trade and other payables (35,26,270) 96,71,540
4 84 86,617 (16,21,07,438)
Cash generated from operations 16,89,06,651 (61,84,693)
Interest expense (1,77,221) (2,86,148)
Income-Tax (4,54,67,359) (6,15,52,099)
(4.56,44 580} (6,18,38,247)
Cash Flow before extraordinary items 12,32,62,071 (6,80,22,940)
— Extraordinary items = =
Net Cash Flow from Operalting activities - A 12,32.62,071 (6,80,22 940)
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets (10,72,31,117) (9,15,00,974)
Capital Work in Progress (28,81,876) (85,43,543)
Sale of Fixed assets 4,30,445 "
Advances to Subsidiaries 2,96,81,111 8,44 74,136
Income, gainsfoss from Investments 2,71,28,886 3,83,30,415
Changes in other bank balances (2,86,860) 3,561,874
___Inyestments (net) {17.95.21.593) 19,98,92,699
Net Cash used in Investing Activities -— B (23,26,81,004) 22,30,04,607
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Changes in other long term Liabilities (1.44,000) 1,44,000
Buy back of shares - (1.24,61,162)
Changes in other long term Borrowing - (7,95,806)
ividend ividend T id (57,93 766) (56,31,823)
Net Cash from Financing Activities - C (59,37,766) (1,87 ,44,791)
Net Increase / (decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalent (11,53,56,699) 13,62,36,876
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the year 15,50,17,476 1,87.80,600
Cash & Cash Equivalent end of the year 3,96,60,777 15,50,17,476
Mote : Figures in brackets represent outflows
As per our r'EIJE:I'T of even date attached
For V.S.LALPURIA & COMPANY Sushila Jain - Director S.K.Jain

Chartered Accountants
(Firm No. 105581W)

Director

Chairman & Managing Director

Sajal 8. Jain

Vice Chairman &
Executive Director, CFO

Arun S.Sureka -
V.S.LALPURIA Narendrakumar Mittal - Director
Proprietor
M. No. 15926

G. R. Parmar - Director

Mumbai, 30th May, 2016
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Pravin Chavan

Company Secretary
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r-Hﬂ'I"ES TO THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31«t MARCH. 2016

2} During last five vears no sharss waera slloted without paymesnt balng recalved in cash or a8 bonus shanes, hmmnmwmref
baught back and extingulshed 2,72 000 equity shares durng the Financlal Year 20114-15.

4} Arnount originally recaived on forfaited sharss Ra. 1,239,350/ - (inclusive of shars premium) included i Ressoves & Surphes.

5} Tha Company has ona class of squity shares having par value of Rts. 10J- parshers. Esch shersholder i sfgibls for ona vols pa]'
shara held. In tha svent of liquidation, the squity shareholdems are alighls to recelve the ramalning assete of the Compary sftet
distribution of all preferantial amounts, in praportion to thelr sharehokiing. The dividend proposad by the Board of Directors hr
subject to the approval of the shareholkders In the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

I Rupees Rupees I
| 31-Mar-16 3i-Mar-15 |
| mTE' l |
SHARE CAPITAL
| Authorised Capital |
| &0,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 6,00,00,000 f,00,00,000 |
| Issuwed & Subscribed |
35,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs,10/- each 3,50,00,000 3,50,00,000
| g |
| 32,09,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 3,20,90,000 3,20,50,000 |
| {Previous Year 32,09,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each) |
| Total 3,20,90,000 3,20,90,000 |
| 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15 |
Mo. of Shares Amount Mo, of Shares Amount
| Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 3205000 3,20,90,000 3481000  3,48,10,000 |
| Less : Shares cancelled on buy back of Equity Shares - - 272000 27,20,000 |
| Equity Shares at the end of the year 3209000  3,20,90,000 3209000  3,20,90,000 |
| 2} Numbee of sharss hekd by pargans holding mare tivan 5% of outstanding share capital : |
31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

| Shri 5. K. Jain 5,10,351 5,10,351 |
I Smt Sushila Jain 2,88,893 2,88,893 I
| Shri Sajal Jain 6,006,496 6,006,496 |
| smt Shreelekha Jain 2,07,702 2,07,702 |
I

I

NOTE - 2 Rupess Rupess
RESERVES & SURPLUS F-Mur-189 31 -Mar-15
Share Premium Account

Balance Brought Forward - 1,29,05,000

Less : On Buy-back of Equity Shares - {1,29,05,000)

Capital Redemption Reserye

38

I

I

I I

I I

I I

I I

I I

| Balance Brought Farward 27,20,000
Add : Transfer fram Praofit & Loss ajc on Buy-back of Equity Shares . 27,20,000 |

| 27,20,000 27,20,000 |

Zhare Forfeityre Account

| Balance Brought Forward 1,39, 350 1,39,350 |

| General Resarve |
Balance Brought Forward H,64,10,678 9,28,77,657

| Less : On Buy-back of Equity Shares . (1,86,42,998) |

| Less : Adjustment due to change in useful life of assets . (3,23,781) |
Transfer fram Surplus 90,00,.000 1,25,00,000

| 0,54,10,878 8,64,10,878 |

| Surplus |
Balance Brought Forward 65,21,93,161 54,490, 04 085

| Profit transferred from Statement of Profit & Loss 9,15,93.436 12,42,02,720 |

| Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve on buy-back of shares - (27,20,000) |
Transfer to General Resarve {90,00,000) {1,25,00,000)

| Proposed Dividend (48,13,791) (48,13,729) |

| Tax on Proposed Dividend (9,79,915) (9,79,915) |
Closing Balance 72,80,92 891 65,21,93 161

| Negative values, appropriations and deductions are shown in bracket. |

| Total 82,72,63,119 74,14,63,389 |

I I

| |
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Rupass Rupess
s . 3 FM-Mur-18 31 -Mar-15
DEFERRED TA X LIABILITY (NET)
lilefcrrcd Tax Liability Depreciation 55,56,384 6,46, 790
Total 55,56, 384 6,46,790
|
I'rII)TE - 4
ER LOMNG-TERM LIA BILITIES

thers-Lease Depasils 73,80,000 75,24,000
| Total 73,80,000 75,24,000
|
MNOTE - 5
'J'RADE PAYABLES
'h‘aﬂﬂ Payables for goods 52,14,719 83,31,200
Traﬂa Payablas for services & expenses 3,30,24,286 3,38,35,410

Total 3,82,39,005 4,21,66,610

NOTE - 6
q)THEH CURRENT LIABILTIES

urrent maturities of long term debt - 8,03,191
Income Received in advance 77,51,754 80,08,948
I}npan:l Dividends [ Refer note (a) below) 38,79,112 35,890,952
chﬂr Payables

~Customer advances 757,060 1,00,79,035
- Statutary dues & others 1,30,50,663 25,55,128
| Total 2i54i33i5H Z:EDEBTEIH

3

#) Thers ars no amounts due for payment to the Investors Education and Prataction Fund umder saction 125 of the
| Companles Act, 2013 as at 31at March, 2016 and 31st March, 2015.

IF)TE- F

.'LHURT TERM PROVISIONS

roposed Dividend 48,13,500 48,13,500
fla % on Proposed Dividend Distributicn 9,79,73% 9,758,799
Total 57,93,239 57,993,299
NOTE -8
Fhond Annatn
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
5r As st Sale { As 8t Up to Deprecistion | Transter Upta B st As st
™ Pored Asscts Bi-04-2015 | Additions ;:;':;"t 31-03-2016 | 01-04-2015 | forthe year |Adjustment | 31-03-2016 | 31-03-2006 | 31-03-2018
[ 'Iingble Assits
L |Land furder e 10,05,924 . 10,05,924 : . : 10,05,324 10,05, 924
2 |uidings * osEO00ESS|  1,0020,243 wrazioes |  yessar|  43mes0 . 1,64,70,342 51350756 |  B37,15,004
3 [Pt & Epipmert 57534797 oiesi7e1| m7sems| weorensez|  sieeesss|  1msaoiz| masss | sisoam 5,75,70,515 56,70,542
1 |rumiie & Fodures 117,65 861 20,453 1.17.86,314 40,118 20,75, 764 ; 58,85,883 59,00,431 79,55, 742
& |omee Equipments 51,864,145 1,51,350 53,365,035 w5523 a8 38,30,420 15,05.615 21,84 522
B |uenices 2,47,31,461 13,56,750 i 2088313 | 16462031 3405144 : 1,30,68,275 £2,19,038 B2,69,332
Tod 10.60,23.095 | 10753117 | 20,7566 | 30,10,70.526 | 9.72.20060 | 1,04,48.319 | 2045801 ]  9.76,25.347 30,35,53,179 | 10,89,01,176
Prervias el TS T | b5 00 T T R Y IR WY T
 |Capital Work in Progress
[Factary Buiing, Pt &
Mathinery and Bectrical
sl i . . L7954738 | 15072362
I Tatal z - 173,549,238 | L.50,72,362
I Temeve = : 15072362 Ba.20.810

[* Nusta : Bubding Inchudes ot out ofice premisas of Ra. 3,25,50,758), |
I I
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Rupses Rupses
31-Mar-18 ¥ -Mar15

NOTE - 9
NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS
TRADE INVESTMENT - AT COST
In Equity Shares of Subsidary Company
Particulars Face No of Units/Shares

Value Current Previous

Rs. Year Year
Indoborax Infrastructure Pvt, Ltd 10 10000 10000 1,01,92,520 1,01,92,520
Sub-total 1,01,92,520 1,01,92,520
OTHER INVESTMENT - AT COST
A ) INVESTMENT IN PROPERTIES
Office Premises ( Refer Note 25(17)) 30,65,57,027 12,02,14,350
B) Investment in Fully paid quoted Equity Shares
(Financial, non-stretegic investments, all insignificant, less than 1% stake)
Particulars Face No of Units/Shares

Value Current Previous

Rs. Year Year
Bharatl Alrtal Lid 5 1250 - £,32,325
Central bank of india 10 4200 2200 4,14,090 414,090
Escorts India Lid 10 1500 1500 3,563,730 3,53,730
Jagran Prakashan Ltd Z < 4550 - 7.28,217
Jaiprakash Associates Lid 2 4500 4500 13,59,496 13,59, 496
Jindal steal & Pow er Lid 1 a00 300 2,12,091 2,12,091
Kamanw ala Industries Lid 10 57395 57385 30,47,081 30,47,081
L&TLI 2 GO0 400 277,869 2,77,869
Mphasis Lid 10 ann 300 2,37 498 2,37,498
Mational Tharmal Pow er Corp Lid 10 ao00 3000 5,91,070 5,91,070
Magarjun Construction Co Lid Z 1500 1500 2,68,790 2,68,790
Punj Lioyd Lid z 4000 4000 12,59,908 12,59,908
Reliance Communications Lid 5 2000 2000 10,07,500 10,07,500
Reliance Indusiries Lid 10 200 800 9,16,841 9.16,841
Unity Projocts Lid 2 2000 2000 2,34 820 2,34,820
Sub-total (Aggregate value of quoted shares) 1,01,80,784 1,14,41,326
Market Value of long-term investment in quoted shares Rs. 38,96,850/-
(Previous Year Rs. 54,16,854/-)
C) Investment in fully paid un-quoted Equity Shares
[Reliance Madia Works Lid 5 [ 6575| 675 | 4,33,583 4,33,583
Sub-total { Aggregate value of unguoted shares) 4,33,583 4,33,583
D) Investment in quoted Debentures
Mational Therm al Power Corp Ltd-
NCD-Bonus Issue 12.50 3000 3,000 - =

Sub-total { Aggregate value of quoted debentures)
NTPC has issued Bonus Debenture of Rs. 12.50 for every equity shares of Rs.10/-. Market Value is Rs. 38,340/-(Previous Year Rs.

38,130/-)

Except investment in Subsidary Company as stated above none of the above investments are in associates or joint ventures or

controlled special purpose entities.

Total

32,73,63,914

14,22,81,779
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Rupsss Rupses

NOTE - 10 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-15
LONG-TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
Unsecured considered good
a) Security Deposits 28,777,606 17,78,606
b) Loans and advances to related party (subsidiary) 17,34,201 3,14,15,312
(Refer Note No. 26 (10) (A))
¢} Loans and advances to employees 14,78,673 17,92,673
d) Loans and advances to others {(against properties) 7,96,60,788 7,64,58,000

Total BISTIS:I.I!EB 11=12‘44I591

Loans and advance to subsidiary are for business purpose. Loans to employees are as per company's policy, Loans and
advances to others are against proposed properties and if the transactions for the proposed properties are not
malterialzed, the management is of the opinion that the advances are recoverable.

NOTE - 11

CURRENT INVESTMENTS

(At lower of cost or market value)
Investment in Mutual Funds

Particulars Face No of Units /Shares
Value Current Previous
Rs. Year Year
ICAC] Prudential Liquid Plan P
100 - 55570 - 55,60,542
Total = 55,60,542
Rupsas Rupsas Rupess Rupess
¥-har-16 H-lar-1% J1-Mlar-16 F1-Mar-13
MNOTE - 12 NOTE - 15
INVENTORIES SHORT TERM LOA NS & ADWVAMNCES
{Refer Note 24 (e ) Acounting polldes flor basls of valuation) OTHERS
Raw Matarials 15,049,568, 294 22.06,20,893 hdvances recoverable in cash or in kind ar
Wark-In-progress 29,85,118 26,30,598 far value to be recalved ¥ 82,065,414 46,65,193
Finished Goods 3,37,02,034 2,00,88,921 Capital Advances : 2,39,99,290
Stores , Spares , 40,57 986 39,94, 878 Advances to Staff 348,781 3,00,000
Packing Materials, Fuel et Income Tax Advances 87,71.848 21,24, 489
Total 19,17,13,432 24,82,35,290 (net of provisions)
Total ﬁ!] 26‘043 am‘ssign
MNOTE - 13 # Advances recoverable, are wwards prepaid expenses and
TRADE RECEIVA BLES from Excse Authorivies.
{Unsecured and Considered good) :::; ::RRIHT —"
Tﬁ;&r;r pr::':dm 208 == L5 Interest recaivable 2,505 2,797
x
Total 2,505 2,797
Other Debts 5,39,95, 508 3,33,82,962 e L L
Total 5,43, 80,868 3,34.49,105
MNOTE - 14

CASH & BANK BALANCES
A) Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash on Hand 1,08,372 78,385
Balances with Banks
=== In Current Accounts 3,95,52,405 15.449,35,091
Sub-total 3,96,60,777 15,50,17,476

B) Other Bank Balances

=== In Unclaimed Dividend Accounts 38,719,112 35,90,952
=== In Flsed Deposits under Lien 1,75,000 176,300
Sub-total 40,54, 112 37.67,252

Total 4,37,14 B89 15,87,84, 728
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NOTES TO THE PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH,2016

Rupees

13

e it

Rupees

31-Mar-16

31-Mar-15

MNOTE - 17
REVENUE FROM OPERA TIONS
Sale of Products
Less : Excise Duty

Total
MNOTE - 18
OTHER _INCOME
Interest Income
Dividend on Current Investments
Dividend an Other Investments
Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Investments
Profit/(Loss) on Sale of Assets
Rent & Facility Charges
Mise.Incomes/Excess provision w/back
Total
MNOTE - 19
COST OF RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED
Opening Stock
Add : Purchases
Less : Closing Stock
Total

Further break-up refer note 25 (19) (E) & (F)
MNOTE - 20
CHA NGES IN INVENTORY
Opening Stock - Finished Goods
Opening Stock - Work-in-Progress
Closing Stock - Finished Goods
Closing Stock - Work-in-Progress
Meutralisation of Excise Duty included in Opening and Closing Stock of
Finished Goods
Total
Further break-up refer note 25 (19) (A) & (C)
MNOTE - 21
EMPLOY EE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries, Wages and Bonus
Workmen & Staff Welfare
Employers Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Funds
Gratuity Contribution/Payment
Total

42

73,40,62,912
8,03,94,244

65,36,68,668

B1,28,74,845
B8,67,85,334

7,904,952
71,25,967
64,135
15,594
4,00,650
1,91,28,238
14,49,859

72,60,89,511

2,89,79,395

|
F

22,06,20,893
28,26,04,453

1,20,91,169
86,31,036
52,057
17,022
1,75,39,131
9,65,187

50,32,25,346
15,09,68,294

3,92,95,602

7,69,76,387
53,36,59,372

35,22,57,052

26,30,598
2,09,88,921
(3,37,02,034)

(29,85,118)

15,12,385

(1,15,55,248)

2,22,62,410
3,42,646
23,32,839
1,25,287

2,50,63,282

61,06,35,759
22,06,20,893

39,00,14,866

1,11,17,206

28,98,540
(2,09,88,921)
(26,30,598)

14,36,308

(81,67,465)

1,74,20,576
1,98,975
16,55,164
3,062,487

1,96,37,202
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MNOTE - 22

FINA NCE COSTS
Interest on Waorking Capital
Interest on Vehicle Loan
Other Interest
Total

NOTE - 23

OTHER EXPENSES
Consumption of Stores, Spares & Packing Materials
Power & Fuel

Water Charges

Factory Expenses

Excise Duty

Rates & Taxes

Rent and Other Charges
Repairs - Plant & Machineries
Repairs - Building

Repairs - Others

Insurance Charges

Directors Remuneration
Directors Sitting Fees
Payment to Auditors

Legal & Professional Charges

Freight , Coolie & Cartage

Commission & Brokerage

Miscellaneous Expenses

Bank Charges

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses
Entry Tax

Rupess Rupaess
J1-Mar-16 F-Mar135
1,57,560 55,874
13,338 2,23,447
6,323 6,827
1,77,221 2,86,148
1,74,47,540 1,49,76,835
3,86,78,539 461,14, 262
10,689,828 5.71,287
1,69,93,713 1,63,63,894
6,13,299 6,73,726
4,50,040 4,60,578
54,70,839 43,45,790
1,70,51,390 6,76,560
58,44,128 1,70,078
27,30,985 6,96,542
3,61,891 2,88,046
1,47,50,444 2,00,42, 896
180,000 2,37,000
14,31,500 11,23,500
36,11,658 79,80,569
1,00,10,688 2,23,31,213
1,12,26,305 1,15,73,618
90,35,293 1,47,74,656
7,38,998 3,36,308
63,01,107 81,578
49,15,222 58,258,414
16,89,33,407 16,96,47,350

NOTE -24

SIGNFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

b)

)

METHOD OF ACCOUNTING

The accounts have bean prepanad under the historical
cost comvanticn on an accrual bagls In secordance with
applicable accounting standerds notified under the
ralevant provisions of the Companlea Act, 2013,
FMEDABBETS

Fixed assets sro stated at cost alongwith cost directly
gttributable to bring the assets to thelr working
condition.

DEPRECIATION

Depreciation ls providad on all assata at Pithampur on
straight line methad and at head offica on written-
down-value method with reference to the ueeful ke of
the reapseciive assets apecified In and In the manner
prescribad In Scheduls | of the Companles Art, 2013,
INVESTMENTS

Cument Investments are stated at lowar of cost ar
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market value. Non-cumant Investmanis arae stated at
eosl axcept whara dinunition in walus, it &y, is olivar
than temparary In natura.

INVENTORIER

[} Rew materale are valusd at cost or at nat
realisabla value whichever is lower.

I Workinprogress |a valuad at estimated cost.

H) Finlahed goads ars valusd at cost or net reallsabls
value whichover i lower,

k) Stores and spares, packing materal and fuels are
vahisd at Cost

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Al forelgn curmency transactions are accounted at the
rate prevalling at tha tima of tranaaction.

SALES

Sales are Inclusive of exclse duty but net of rate
differance, salss retum and Central Salss Tax/\Value
Acded T
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h) EMPLOYEES BENEFITS
Defined Contribution Benefits
Company's contributions paid/payable during the year
to Provident Fund, Family Pension Fund, ESIC and
Labour Welfare Fund are recognized in Profit & Loss
Account.
Defined Benefit Plan
i. The payments to Life Insurance Corporation of
India for all the employees covered under 'Employees
Group Gratuity cum Life Assurance Scheme' are
based on amount of premium determined by them.
Premiums so paid for the year are recognised in the
profit and loss account after adjusting for effect of
acturial valuation for the year.
ii. Annual Leave Encashment is accounted on
accrual basis.

i) CONTINGENT LIABILITY
Contingent liabilities are not provided for but are
disclosed by way of Notes on Accounts.

j} DEFERRED TAXATION
Deferred Tax resulting from timing differences between
book profit and tax profit is accounted for under the
liability method, at the current rate of tax.

k) SEGMENTREPORTING
Manufacturing of chemicals is considered a single
reportable segment within the meaning of AS-17.

NOTE - 25
OTHER DISCLOSURES & NOTES

1 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments for provided
for: In 1992, STC of India Ltd had claimed for Rs.
9,02,807/- towards price difference & others, against
this, Honourable Bombay High Court ordered
Company to give bank guarantee of Rs. 1,65,000/-.
(Previous year Rs. 1,65,000/-)

2 Previous year figures have been rearranged
fragrouped, whearever naecessary, to make them
comparable with current year figures.

3 During the year, company had increased installed
production capacity of boric acid at Pithampur from
14400 MT to 20000 MT. In the process of capacity
expansion, Company has repaired old plant and
machinery to harmonised with new plant & machinery
and to synchronize the old production process with
new one. Company has made addition to factory
building and repaired to the old factory building
including roads.

4 During the year company has capitalised revenue
expenses of Rs. 42,52 229/- from power charges,
water charges, professional fees & factory salary as
per actual usage, towards addition to factory building
Rs. 10,12,485/- & plant & machinery Rs. 32,39,734/-.

3

5 Payment to Statutory Auditors:

Current Year Previous Year

Rupees Rupees

a) As Auditors 450,000 3,00,000
b) In Other Capacity

For Tax Audit 1,50,000 1,00,000

For Certification 5,31,500 4,48,500

For Taxation Matters 3,00,000 2.75.000

Total 14,31,500 11,23,500

6 Managerial Remuneration to Directors:

Break up of Remuneration

1. Salary & Allowances 34,656,000 34,56,000

2. Contribution to 2,59,200 2,59,200
provident Fund

3. Commission on profit 1,06,76,108 1,58,64 477

4, Perquisites 6.18,336 7.22.419

Total 15,009,644 20,302,096
The Company has taken Group Gratuity Policy and
contributing for the Managing & Executive Directors are
not separately determined, hence notincluded above,
The Balances of sundry debtors, trade payable, loans and
advances are subject to confirmation & reconciliation, if
any. In the opinion of the management, adjustment, if any,
arising out of reconciliation are not expected to be
significant.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the assets (other
than fixed assets and non-cument investments) have
value on realisation in the ordinary course of business at
least equal to the amount at which they are stated.

Major components of deferred tax liabilities and assets
arising on account of timing difference are :-

31.03.2016  31.03.2015

Liabilities

On account of Depreciation

55,566,384 6,46,790

Assels
On account of Disallowances - -

Met Deferred Tax Liability

—20.06.384 646790

10. Related party Disclosures :-

A Where Control Exists

a) Name Indoborax Infrastructure Pvt Ltd.
Relationship : Subsidiary Company
Holding 100%

b) Details of Transactions

Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Qutstanding Investment 1,01.92,520 1,01,92,520
in Share Capital

Advances Given during 32,54,238 1,07.25,864
the year

Armount received back 3,20,35,349 9,52 00,000
during the year

Advances outstanding 17,34,201 3,14,15,312
at year end

Interest Income

6,13,189 1,19,17,627
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B Key Management Parsonnel & thelr relatives
E} Shr . K, Jain, Managing Directar and Shri.Segal Jain, 186

Particulars
ﬁﬂ‘l‘luhﬂl‘ﬂhh -

:I:Jirur:tur- Sitting Fese - -

Exscutive Director of the Compesty hold sigmificant inbrset
and key marmgamset pogition in the Comparny.

S.K. Jain  Sejal Jain Sushila Jain

75.04,822 75,04,822 &
{1,01,51,048) {1,01,51,048) -
43,000
{42,000)

Purchasa valus of
Shares of Subgidiery - .

{60,56,260) {;5,12.54?} =

"The Company has taken Group Gratulty Pollcy and
ntributlon for the Managing Director and Executive Director
e nat sapamtely determined, hence netinchuded aboye.

I
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Pursuant to Accounting Stendard Intarpratation (AS1)-
14 {(Revisad) "Disclosurs of Ravenue from Salea
Trangactions® lesuad by the Inatitute of Chartarad
Accountants of Indla, the excize duly expensas Iz
bifurcatad Into three : excise duty expanzes
relatad to sales |z reduced from Gross Sales, axclss
duly relating to the difference between the closing and
ppening stock im recognized in the inventory
mdjustments and the unmcoversd excise duty is
recapnized under ather expanses,

Eaming parehara Is compuiad based on tha following:-

Yaar Ended Year Ended
Profit after tax - (Rs.) 8,15,93 436 124202720
Walghted average
number of aquity Sharos)
Bewic wnd dikted Eaming
pior Shans Rs.
{Face Value of Shara
Ra. 10/

32,089,000 32,24,170

28.64 38.62

No Provislon for diminution In value of long term
investments in quoted sheres aggregating to Re.
67,395,785/ (Previous year :Rs, 67,79,004/<) haw beasn
mads in accounts as the diminution s of temponary
nature as par apinlon of the managament.

The company has not entered in any dervative
treractions by way of curmsety andfor inbscast mils
swap or forward sxchangs contract.

a) None of the supplier of the company has informed
that it is m 8| unit. Thersfore, outstanding ta 88l units is
cangidaned to be MIL.

b} In the abssnce of any Inimation recelved from
vandore reganding the status of their registretion under

tha * Micro, Small and Madlum Entarpriaaa Dave
mant Act, 2006 " the company Is unabla to comply
the disclosure required to be made relatingthereto, |

Tha company has taken Group Gratulty Palley from LIC:I
and the premiums determined by LIC and payable fou
the financlal vear adjusted for effect of acturial \rﬂuuﬂnnl
at year end Is charged to Profit & Loss Account.
Raquired disclosures as per parliculers recelved from

LIC and accounts ars as under |
CurentYesr  Prevous Yoar |
a) Assumptions
Discourt Rate . e
Salary Escalation g 5 Fomg
Withdrawal rate 1 to 3% depending on age 'n\.frﬂ'l:kal.\a‘.lﬂzlmj%depaﬁrgl
on age |
Mortzdity Rate LIC {1994-05)  LIC | 1904-06)
Bess R |
by Table showing changes in present value of obligations |
i} Presert value of obligations -beginning of the year 49,74 319 41,593,178
iy Inberest oost 307,038 335,854 |
i) Currert Service cost 2,509,453 2,053,554
i) Benefits paid {310,500 E
w)  Acturial (gainjyioss on chiigations {75,520 236,633
vi)  Present value of obligations -end of the year 52 45 500y 40,74.219 |
¢} Tabie showing changes in the fair valee of plan asets |
i) Fair value of plan assets -baginring of the viar 56,96, 15% 47,715,738 |
iy Expected return on the plan assets 4 f1.252 4,739,069
jii) Contributions . 463,352 |
i) Benefits paid {310,500 ==
v)  Adurial gain / (loss) on plan assets - g
vi) Fair value of plan assets -end of the year SEERDIL  56.08,150 |
dy Amount o be recogrised in the balance sheet |
iy Fair value of plan assets -end of the vear 58,668,911 56,548,159 |
iy Present value of obligations -end of the year 52,45,590 49,724,219
fi) heset ({Liability} recognised 6,233 83,990 |
&) Eepenses recognised in statement of profit & loss acoount |
i) Cument serdce ot 250,453 2.03.554|
ii) Interest oost 397938 335054
iii) Expected retum on plan assets. [4,81,252) (4,29,058)
iv) Achurial (gain) / loss recognised (75,5200 -
v)  Adjustment for prepesd portion | LCSA premium | |
Renewal date variation 24068 262,148
W) Bwperses recogrisad in prafit B loss acount 1.25.387 3,[1.2,@?'

17 During ths year company has Inveatad Re_ 18,6342 677/-

In new offica premigas at Bandra Kuria Complex, Mumbal
in addition to aarller Mwestment In office pmniaasnfﬁs.l

12,02,14 360~

I
18 Detalls of CSR Spend during the financlal yanl;i

During the year, the Company has incurred an amournt
Ra. §3,01,107/- ttwards Corporate Socal Responsibility
expanditure, which incdudes pravious ysans umpanﬁ
amount of Rg. 27,47, 154/-.
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18 _OTHER DISCLOSUIRES PURSLUANT TO FART Il OF REVISED SCHEDLILE Il
ri Year Previous Year
Rupees Rupees
A OPENING STOCK OF FINISHED GOODS
Boron Products 2,09,88,921 1,11,17,206
Other chemicals & Minerals - -
2,09,88,921 1,11,17,206
B SALES
Boron Products 72,42,22,297 80,04,12,600
Mineral waste 98,40,615 1,24,62,236
73,40,62,912 81,28,74,845
C CLOSING STOCK OF FINISHED GOODS
Boron Products 3,37,02,034 2,09,88,921
3,37,02,034 2,09,88,921
D CLOSING STOCK OF WORK-IN-PROGRESS
Baron Products 29,85,118 26,30,598
29,85,118 26,30,598
E RAW MATERIALS COMNSUMED
Boron Mineral & Products 30,70,50,195 33,82,26,422
Other chemicals 4,52,06,857 5,17,88 444
35,22,57,052 39,00,14,866
F  CONSUMPTION OF IMPORTED & INDIGENOUS MATERIAL
RAW MATERIALS B VALUE Ok VALUE
i} Imported 87.17 30,70,50,195 86.72 33,82,26,422
i) Indigenous 12.83 4,52,06,857 13,28 5,17,88,444
100.00 35,22,57,052 100.00 39,00,14,866
STORES & SPARES
i)  Imported -
i) Indigenous 100.00 1,19,81,994 100.00 86,45,151
100.00 1,19,81,994 100.00 86,45,151
G C.LF VALUE OF IMPORTS
Raw Materials, Chemicals & Minerals 20,37,38,633 42,60,91,326
Capital Goods/(\WIP) 1,05,04,669 37,73,973
H Company has neither remiited dividend in foreign currency in current year nor in previous year.
I  EARMNINGS IN FOREIGN EXCHAMNGE MIL MIL
]  EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURREMNCY
FOR TRAVEL/SUBSCRIPTION ETC 3,95,033 6,23,378
As par our report of even dats attached
For V.5.LALPURIA & COMPANY Sughlla Jain - Director S.K.Jaln
Chartarad Accountants Chairman & Managing Director
(Firm No. 105581W)
Arun S.5ureka - Director Sajal 5. Jeln
Vica Chaiman &
V.S.LALPURIA Narendrakumar Mittal - Director Exacutive Director, CFO
Propriator
M. No. 15928
@. R. Pamar - Director Pravin Chavan
Mumnbai, 30th May, 2016 Company Sacratary
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REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial
statements of INDO BORAX & CHEMICALS
LIMITED (“the company”), and its subsidiary
INDOBORAX INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE
LIMITED (“the subsidiary”) ( the company and the
subsidiary constifute “the Group”) which comprises the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31" March, 2016 and
the Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss and
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements in
terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) to give true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flow of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including
the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies ( Accounts )
Rules, 2014, The respective Board of Directors of the
company and its subsidiary are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safequarding
the respective assets of the Company and its subsidiary and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other iregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgements and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of these
consolidated financial staterments by the Board of Directors
of the Company.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the
provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in
the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing specified under the Section 143(10) of the Act.
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirernents and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the Auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the Auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the
Company's preparation of the consolidated financial
staternents that give frue and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company's Board of
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

OPINION

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information
required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
trueg and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated
state of affairs of the group as at 31" March, 2016 and its
consolidated profit and its consolidated cash flows for the
year ended on that date,

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY
REQUIREMENTS

1. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report
that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of
consolidated financial statements.

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required
by law relating to preparation of the Consolidated
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Financial Statements have been kept by the Company so

far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c¢) the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement dealt with this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

d) inouropinion, the Consolidated Financial Statements
comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules2014.

e) on the basis of written representations received from
the Directors of the Company as on 31" March, 2016,
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of
its subsidiary company, none of the directors of the
group company, is disqualified as on 31" March, 2016
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164 (2) of the Act.

f)  with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our report in
“Annexure A', which is based on the Auditor's Report
of the Company and its subsidiary company. Our
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company and its subsidiary company.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies | Audit and Auditors') Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Group has disclosed that there are no pending
litigation which may impact on its consolidated
financial position of the group in its consclidated
financial statements as of 31* March, 2016.

i) The Group did not have any long-term contracts
including derivatives contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses;

iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts,
required to be transferred to the Investors Education
and Protection Fund by the company.

For V. S. LALPURIA & COMPANY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(Firm No. 105581W)

(V. S. LALPURIA)

Mbiinbial Proprietor
umbai

30" May, 2016 Membership No. 15926

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls
under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143
of the Act

We have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of INDO BORAX & CHEMICALS
LIMITED (“the company”) and its subsidiary company as
of 31 March, 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the

consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The respective Board of Directors of company and its
subsidiary company, are responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company and its subsidiary
company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAl"). These responsibilities

include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to respective company's policies, the safequarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”).
AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit, We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143 (10) of the Act to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
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Controls, and, both issued by the ICAl. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal controls based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depends on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial
control system over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
A Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
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unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL
FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls
over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, the Company and its subsidiary
company, have in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial control system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31
March 2016, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the
Company and its subsidiary company considering the
essential components of internal controls stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by ICAL

For V. S. LALPURIA & COMPANY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(Firm No. 105581W)

(V. S. LALPURIA)
Proprietor
Membership No. 15926

Mumbai
30" May, 2016
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH, 2016
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Rupees Rupees
Notes 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15
1. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
a) Share Capital 1 3,20,90,000 3,20,90,000
b) Reserves & Surplus 2 83,87 44 849 75,22,52 283
Total (1) 87,08,34,849 78,43,42,283
2. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
a) Long Term Borrowings 3 1.50,92 878 4,64.24 627
b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 4 55,01,875 5,05 485
¢) Other Long-term Liabilities 5 73, 80,000 75,24 000
Total (3) 2,79,74,753 5.,45,44,112
3. CURRENT LIABILITIES
a) Trade Payables B 3,99,51,792 4,37,42,572
b) Other Current Liabilities 7 2.62,14,416 2.92.65,542
¢) Short-term Provisions 5 57,93.239 70,66,366
Total (4) 7,19,59.447 8,00,74,480
Total 97.,07,69,049 91.89,60,875
II. ASSETS
1. NON-CURRENT ASSETS
a) Fixed Assets
[ - Tangible Assets 9 20.36,58,820 10,89.86,115
Il - Capital Work in Progress 1,79,54 238 1,50,72 362
b) Goowill on Consalidation 28,99 922 28,99 922
¢) Mon-current Investments 10 31,71,71,394 13,20,89,259
d) Long-term Loans & Advances 11 8,41,92 287 801,98 249
Total (1) 62,58,76,661 33,92,45,907
2. CURRENT ASSETS
a) Current Investments 12 - 55,60 542
b Inventories 13 22 .59 27 718 31,54 32 519
¢) Trade Receivables 14 5,64,08,489 6,01,65,685
d) Cash & Bank Balances 15 d,41,06,063 16,06,62,115
e) Loans & Advances 16 1.84,48.613 3,78,91,510
f) Other Current Assets 17 2,505 2,797
Total (2) 34,48,92 388 57.97,14 968
Total 97.07,69,049 01.89,60,875
Sigmificant Accounting Polldes 26
Other Disclosures & Notes 27
As per owr report of even data attached
Far V.S5.LALPURIA & COMPANY R - Ly ghl&l-laln R
{Firm No. 1usas1%m Anun 8.5unsie = Direotor TR IEHS #
V.8.LALPURIA Narsndrakumar Mittal - Diractor Sajel 8. Juin .
uidu Nefor Vice Chairman &Executive Diroctor, CFO
mo. 16926 . R. Parmar - Director Previn Chevan-Company Sacrstery

Mumbal, May 30, 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2016

Rupees Rupees
Note 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15
INCOME
Revenue from Operations 18 69,61 68,668 87.45.16,025
Other Income 19 2.83.66,206 3.03.47.306
Total Income 72,45,34,874 90,48,63.331
EXPENSES
Cost of Raw Materials Consumed 20 35,22,57,062 39,00, 14,866
Cost of Construction 21 8,58.565 3.50,83,162
Changes in Inventory 22 2,14 27 495 673,42 869
Emplovee Benefits Expense 23 2,64,60, 455 2,18.20,883
Finance Costs 24 30,62 618 53.05,959
Depreciation 9 1,25,28 617 1,15,66,421
Other Expenses 25 17.16,41,967 17,42,29,535
Total Expenditure 58,82,42,769 70,53,63,695
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 13.62,92 105 19,94 99 636
TAX EXPENSE
Current Tax 3,90,99,443 6,46,36,308
Deferred Tax 49 06,390 17.14,926)
Prior Period Tax Adjustments - 29,779
Total Tax Expense 4,40,05,833 6,39,51,161
PROFIT AFTER TAX 02286272 13,55,48,475
Add/Less: Minority Interest (income)losses - (45,38,302)
PROFIT AFTER TAX & MINORITY INTEREST 9,22 86,272 13,10,10,173
Basic and diluted earning per share. (Face Value Rs. 10/- each) 28.76 40.63
Significant Accounting Polcles 26
Other Disclosures & Notas 27
As per our report of even dete atteched
shila Jain - Director .
For vwm?a& COMPANY e giIKH.IJHJH R s
Chart Accountants T anaging I
(Firm No. 105581W) Anun 8.Surska - Dirsctor
Narsndrakumar Mital - D g i
V.S.LALPURIA mar viitial - LAroctor Vice Chalrman &Executive Director, CFO
mo. 15926 G. R. Pamar - Dirsctor Pravin Chavan-Company Secretary

Mumbal, May 30, 2016
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NSOLIDATED CASH F ATEMENT THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 201

ALl FIBURES N RUPEES
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Met Profit before tax and extraordinary ibems adjusted, 13,62,92,105 19,94,99,636
Adjustments for
Depreciation 1,25,28,617 1,15,66,421
Profit/loss on sale/discarding of assets {4,00,650) -
Preliminary Expenses Amortised -
Profit/less on sale of Investment [15,504) (17,023)
Income from investments (2,65,00,103) (2,93,65,097)
Interest 28,91,720 50,26,638
(1,14,96,010) (1,27 89,060)
Operating profit before working capital changes 12,47 96,095 18,67,10,576
Adjustments for :
Trade and other Receivables 37,57,488 (2,35,03,155)
[nventaries 8,95,04,601 (7.79,82,768)
Loans & Advances 2,28,88,813 (1,43,02,893)
Trade and other payables (68,41,%06) 55,78 865
10,93,08 996 (11,02,00,951)
Cash generated from operations 23,41,05,091 7,65,00,625
Interest (28,91,720) {50,26,638)
Incomea-Tax {4,78,12,464 56:32:40 832)
5,07.04 184} (7,32,67,470
Cash Flow before extraordinary tams 18,34 00,907 32,33,1558
Extraordinary items -
Met Cash Fow from Operating activities --- A 18,34,00,907 32,33,155
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets (10,72,31,117) (9,15,00,974)
Capital Work in Progress (28,81,876) (B5,43,543)
Purchase of Investments - {1,01,32,520)
Sale of Fixed assets 1,30,445 .
Income, galns [ loss from Investments 2,65,15,697 £2,93,82,119
Changes in other bank balances (2,806,860 3,51,874
Investments {net) (17,95,21,593) 21,00,25,219
Met Cash used in Investing Activities --- B (26,29,75,304) 12,95,82,175
C CASH FLOW FROM FINA NCING ACTIVITIES

Long term borrowings {3,13,31,749) 46,13,920
Buy back of shares - (1,24,61,162)
Shork term borrowings -

Changes in ather long berm liabilities (1.44,000% 1,44, 000

Dividend & Dividend Tax paid (57,93,766) (56,31,823)
Met Cash from Fnancing Activities --- € (3,72,69,515) (1,33,35,065)
Met Increase | (decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalent (11,843,891 2) 11,54,00, 205
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the year 15,68,94,863 3.74,14.597
Cash & Cash Equivalent end of the year 4,08,50,851 15408000

Maots @ Figures In brackets rapresent outficws
As per our report of even date etteched

For V.S.LALPURIA & COMPANY Sushile Juin - Director & K.Jaln

m M'I%m Arun 5.Sureka - Dinector Chalmman & Managing Director.
mmum Narandrakurmar Miltal - Directar fﬁ"n:l gﬁiman SExecutive Direcior, GFO
M. No. 156926 G. R. Pamar - Director i G CoR s S

Mumbal, May 30, 2016 52
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2016

Rupees Rupees
31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015
NOTE - 1
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised Capital
60,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
aiocl & Eulacibad 60,000,000 60,000,000
35,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 35 000 000 35 000.000
Paid up B o
(Previous Year 32,089,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each) A gy
32,090,000 32,090,000
1) The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding is set out below:
31/03/2016 31/03/2015
Mo. of Shares Amount Mo. of Shares Amount
Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 3209000 32,000,000 3481000 34,810,000
Less : Shares cancelled on buy back of Equily Shares - -
Equity Shares at the end of the year 3208000 32,090,000 3200000 32,090,000
2) Number of shares held by persons holding more than 5% of outstanding share capital :
: ‘ 31/03/2016  31/03/2015
Shri 5. K. Jain 510351 510351
Smt Sushila Jain 288893 288893
Shri Sajal jain 606496 606496
Smt Sreelekha Jain 207702 207702

3) During last five years no shares were alloted without payment being received in cash or as bonus shares, however
company were bought back and extinguished 2,72,000 equity shares during the Financial Year 2014-15.
4) Amount originally received on forfeited shares Rs. 139350/ - (inclusive of share premium) included in Reserves & Surplus.

5) The Company has one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote par
share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity sharehclders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amounts, in propartion to their shareholding.

NOTE - 2 RESERVES & SURPLUS
Share Premium Account

Balance Brought Forward - 12,905,000
Less : On Buy-back of Equity Shares - (12,905,000)
Capital Redemption Reserve
Balance Brought Forward 2,720,000 .
Add : Transfer from Profit & Loss Account on Buy-back of Equity Shares . 2,720,000

¥ Ll 2.720,000 2,720,000
Share Forfeilure Account

Balance Brought Forward 139,350 139,350
General Reserve

Balance Brought Forward 86,410,878 92,877,657

Less : On Buy-back of Equity Shares & (18,642,998)

Less : Adjustment due to change in useful life of assets " (323,781)

Transfer from Surplus

05,410,878 86,410,878

Surplus Balance Brought Forward 662,982,055 552,985,526
Profit transferred from Statement of Profit & Loss 92,286,272 131,010,173

Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve on Buy-back of Equity Shares - (2,720,000)

Transfer to General Reserve (9,000,000) (12,500,000}
Proposed Dividend (4,813,791) (4,813,729)

Tax on Proposed Dividend (979,915) (979,815)

Closing Balance 740,474,621 662,982,055

Megative values, appropriations and deductions are shown in bracket.

836744849 752,252,283
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2016
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Ruposs
31 Mar 2018

NOTE - 3

LONG TERM BORRCWINGS

Loars & advances from Directors -Unsecured
{(Long term bormowing with no fixed repayment schedule)

NOTE - 4

DEFERRED TAX LIABILTY (NET}
Deferrad Tax Liskility Deapreciation

NOTE - 5

OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Leas Daposits

NOTE - 8

TRADE PAYABLES

Trads Payubles for Goods
Trads Payables for Barvices & Exponges
Trads Payablaa for Matarial & Labour {Net of Advancas)

NOTE - 7

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Currant maturitias of long term dabt
Incoma Racalvad in advance

Unpaid Dividends

Other Payablea

' -Custormer advances
' -Taxes & Stahdory Duea

NOTE - B

SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Income Tax

Proposad Dividend
Teoe on Propossd Dividend Dighrbution

15,082 878

Rupess
31 Mar 2016

45,424 B27

15,092,878

48,414,827

5,501,875

5,501,875

505 485
596,486

7,380,000

7,524,000

5,214,719
34,018,012

8,331,200
472,623

T.751,754
3,879,112

767,080
13,828 480

26,214,418

4,813,500

1,273,087
4,813,500

5,793,239 7088, 368
MOTE - 9
Flued Assets
GROSS BLOCK DEFRECIATION MET BLOCK
Dep on
Addithens/Adjus Sale | nssets
:r Fhou Auaste 0 :: 2015 | tmenteduring | Transter / :I~:;~.ﬂtﬂ 16 ul-m-t;ns I:-T;EM:" whose | :.-:r-;nu 3 1-:;::\". 1 1-:: 2015
" , tha year Adpastment = YOI satul ifo s 3
Hil
I [Tanghe Assats
I |Lard (under keeme) 10,05, 534 - 10,0%,924 - 10,05,524
2 |Budings * 9,58,00,855 1,200,343 £ 1D, 78,201,098 1.20,85 2841 43,484,501 = 1,64, 70,342 B 37,115,014
3 |Flant E Equipment 5,75, 71,653 9,36,E1, 78] 20,775,538 14,9177, 758 5.18,81 79% 17,71,325 20, 1% 841 5,16,07 183 5h, B9 BS54
4 |Furmiture & Futures 1,17,67,435 20,453 2 1,17 BT BE9 2H,11,156 20,786,302 = 5H, 87 45H 749,506,280
5 |Odhce Equipments 51,H%,355 1,51,830 53,37,385 %0,00,550 B.31,020 38,231,570 21,84 745
& |Wehickes 2,54,56,421 13,58, 750 . 1,68,13,171 1,70,22,121 34,65, 465 - 2,04,87,592 43,25.579 84,734,198
Tetal ]5,‘?.!?.514 10,72 31,117 20,75 636 | 30,19.43,165 &, 780155609 13538617 20,45 841 9,87 4,345 20.36,58 820 10,89, 86,115
PrisvEus 7 aal 10,57 B, 7 80 0,15 00,574 l'i'.l'ln'.ll.'.E*- 7h0.11 }_I;Lnl 1 |'|JI'|'I:= #21 1,23, 781 H THOL 548 B0, &0 A6, LIS 2831 75 343
Il |[Capital Wark In Progroes
(Factory Buldicg, Plant &
Machirry and Electrical
irestalit ions] 1,79,54,218 1,50,72 i
] Total - 1,79,54, 238 1,50, 72,362
FrEvous ¥ear 1,%0,7F 352 65 FH 2159

* Moie : Huksing smcludm (et oot o¥ice peamiaes of #e. 3 25 59 738
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2016

Rupees Rupees

31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015
NOTE - 10
NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS
INVESTMENT (NON-TRADE) - AT COST
A ) INVESTMENT IN PROPERTIES-Office Premises 306,557,027 120,214,350
B} Investment in Equity Instruments
(Fully Paid - Quoted)

(Financial, non-stretegic investments, all insignificant, less than 1% stake)
Market Value of long-term investment in quoted shares Rs. 38,96,850/-)
(Previous Year Rs. 54,16,854/-) 10,180,784 11,441,326
C) Investment in Equity Instruments
(Fully Paid - Un-quoted) 433,583 433,583
D} Investment in Debenture Instrument
{Fully Paid - Quoted) £ -
(Market Value of debenture Rs. 38,340/- (Previous Year Rs. 38,130/-)
Mone of the above investments are in associates or joint
ventures or controlled special purpose entities.
317,171,394 132,089,259

NOTE - 11
LONG-TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
a) Security Deposits 3,052,826 1,947 576
b) Loans and advances to other parties (Employees) 1,478,673 1,792,673
¢) Loans and advances to other parties ( against properties) 79,660,788 76,458,000

84,192,287 80,198,249

Loans o employees are as per company’s policy. Loans and advances to others are against proposed properties and if the
transactions for the proposed properties are not materialised, the management |s of the opinion that the advances are recoverable.

NOTE - 12
CURRENT INVESTMENTS
'(At lower of cost or market value)

Investment in Mutual Funds - 5,560,542
- 5,560,542

NOTE - 13

INVENTORIES

{As taken, valued & certified by the Management)

Raw Materials 150,968,294 220,620,893

Work-in-progress 2,985,118 2,630,598

Constructed Flat 34,214 286 67,197,029

Finished Goods 33,702,034 20,988,921

Stores , Spares , Packing Materials, Fuel etc. 4 057,986 3,894 878
225,927,718 315,432,319

NOTE - 14

TRADE RECEIVABLES
(Unsecured, considered good)

Debts due for period exceeding six months 385,360 66,143
Other Debt __ 56,023,129 60,099 542
56,408,489 60,165,685
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2016
Rupees Rupees
31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015
NOTE - 15
CASH & BANK BALANCES
A) Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash on Hand 154,045 130,104
Balances with Banks
'—- |n Current Accounts 239,896,906 156,764,759
Sub-total 40,050,951 156,894,863
B) Other Bank Balances
-— In Unclaimed Dividend Accounts 3,879,112 3,590,952
- In Fixed Deposits under Lien 175,000 176,300
Sub-total 4,054,112 3,767,252
44,105,083 160,662,115
NOTE - 16
SHORT TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
Loans and Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or
for value to be received # 8.216,018 5,255,331
Capital Advance - 23,999,290
Maintenace Recoverable from flat owners 314,371
Advances o Staff 353,781 300,000
Receivable from Customers - Refer Note 27 (3) (b ) . 6,212,400
Income Tax Advances 0 564 443 2 194 489
18,448,613 37,891,510
# Advances are towards prepaid expenses & to Excise Authorities
NOTE - 17
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Interest receivable 2,505 2797
2,505 2,797
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2016
NOTE - 18
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sales of Products (Gross)/Units 776,562,912 861,301,359
Less:Excise Duty on sale of Products _ 80394244  _ 86,785334
696,168,668 874,516,025
NOTE - 19
OTHER INCOME
Interest Income 181,763 3,142,873
Dividend on current investments 7,125,967 8,631,036
Dividend on other investments 64,135 52,057
Gain/(Loss) on sale of investments 15,594 17,022
Profit/(Loss) on sale of assets 400,650 -
Rent & Facility Charges 19,128,238 17,539,131
Misc Income/Excess Provison written back 1,449,859 985,187
28,366,206 30,347,306
NOTE - 20
COST OF RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED
Opening Stock 220,620,893 76,976,387
Add : Purchases 282,604,453 533,659,372
503,225,346 610,635,759
Less : Closing Stocks
352,257,052 390,014,866
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2016

NOTE - 21

COST OF CONSTRUCTION
Architect & Design Expenses
Construction Contracts

Municipal & Other Charges
Purchase of Materials

Other Construction & Site Expenses

NOTE - 22

CHANGES IN INVENTORY
Opening Stock - Finished Goods
Opening Stock - Work-in-Progress
Opening Stock - Constructed Units
Closing Stock - Finished Goods
Closing Stock - Constructed Units

Closing Stock - Work-in-Progress
Meutralisation of Excise Duty included in Opening and Closing Stock of Finished Goods

NOTE - 23

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries, Wages and Bonus

Workmen & Staff Welfare

Employers Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Funds
Gratuity Contribution/Payment

NOTE- 24

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on Working Capital
Interest on Vehicle Loan
Other Interest

NOTE - 25

OTHER EXPENSES
Consumption of Stores, Spares & Packing Materials
Power 8 Fuel

Water Charges

Factory Expenses

Excise Duty

Rates & Taxes

Rent and Other Charges
Repairs - Plant & Machineries
Repairs - Building

Repairs - Others

Insurance Charges

Directors Remuneration
Directors Remuneration - Subsidiary
Directors Sitting Fees
Payment to Auditors

Legal & Professional Charges
Freight , Coolie & Cartage
Commission & Brokerage
Miscellaneous Expenses
CSR Expenses

Bank Charges

Entry Tax

57

(3

Rupees Rupees
31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015
300,000 -
- 3,154 924
- 15,674 Ba0
- 8,623,954
558,565 7.629 404
858,565 35,083,162
2,630,598 11,117,206
20,988,921 145,605,903
67,197,029 -
(33,702,034) (20,988,921)
34,214,286 (67,197,029)
(2,985,118) {2,630,598)
1,512,385 1,
21,427,495 67,342,869
23,602,383 19,526,353
405,846 276,879
2,332,830 1,665,164
Yd
26,466,455 21,820,883
157,560 55,874
13,338 223 447
2,891,720
3,062,618 5,305,959
1,74,47,540 1,49,76,835
3,87,19,111 4,61,14,262
11,03,349 5,711,287
1,69,93,713 1,63,63,894
6,13,299 6,73,726
453,440 4 66,278
54,70,839 43,45,790
1,70,51,390 6,76,560
58,44,128 1,70,078
27.71,508 713677
3,61,891 2,88,046
1,47,50,444 2.00.42 896
9,00,000 8,90,000
1,80,000 2,37,000
16,23,000 11,83,5600
40,05,182 90,04 ,565
1,00,10,688 2,23,31,213
1,19,28,305 1,36,85,618
94.58,014 1,52 47,167
63,01,107 81,578
7,39,797 3,37,151
49,15,222 58,28,414
17,16,41,967 17,42,29,535
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

g)

h)

METHOD OF ACCOUNTING

The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost
convention on an accrual basis in accordance with
applicable accounting standards and the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

FIXED ASSETS
Fixed assels are stated at cost alongwith cost directly
attributable to bring the assets to their working condition.

DEPRECIATION

Depreciation is provided on all assets at Pithampur ( straight
line method ) and at head office { written-down-value) with
reference to the useful life of the respective assets specified in
and in the manner prescribed in Schedule I of the
Companies Act, 2013. Subsidiary's assets value upto
Rs.20,000/- and assets having no useful life is fully
depreciated.

INVESTMENTS

Current investments are stated at lower of cost or market
value. Long Term Investments are stated at cost except
where dimunition in value, if any, is other than temporary in
nature, in which case they are stated net of provision for such
dimunition in value.

INVENTORIES

i) Raw materials are valued at cost or in case where the
resultant finished goods are expected to be sold at less than
cost, at net realisable value,

i) Work-in-progress for manufactured goods is valued at
estimated cost,

iii) Constructed units valued at proportionate of cost of land,
cost of materials, construction expenses, other direct
expenses and indinect Expenses.

Finished goods are valued at cost or net realisable value
whichever is lower.

iv) Stores and spares, packing material and fuel are valued
at Cost,

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS
All foreign currency transactions are accounted at the rate

prevailing at the time of transaction.

SALES

Sales are inclusive of excise duty but net of rate difference
pavable, sales return and Central Sales Tax/Value Added
Tax.

Income Recognition

Income from sale of units is recognised when the substaintial
risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the buyer
under the terms of the contract. Revenue from sale of under
constructions units covered by legally enforceable sale

i)

)]

k)

]

m)

agreements is recognised on percentage completion method
and stage of completion is determined on the basis of cost
incurred upto reporting date in accordance with 1CAl's
Guidance Note on Accounting for Real Estate Transacations
(Revised 2012).

EMPLOYEES BENEFITS

Defined Contribution Benefits

Company's contributions paid/payable during the year to
Provident Fund, Family Pension Fund, ESIC and Labour
Welfare Fund are recognized in Profit & Loss Account.

Defined Benefit Plan

i. The payments to Life Insurance Corporation of India for
all the employees covered under 'Employees Group
Gratuity cum Life Assurance Scheme' are based on
amount of premium determined by them. Premiums so
paid/payable for the year adjusted for effect of acturial
valuation at year end are recognized in the Profit & Loss
Acoount.

ii. Annual Leave Encashment is accounted on accrual
basls.

Employvees of the subsidiary company are presently not
entitled to any benefits referred to in AS-15.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY
Contingent liabilities are not provided for but are disclosed
by way of Notes on Accounts,

DEFERRED TAXATIO

Deferred Tax resulting from timing differences between book
and tax profits is accounted for under the liability method, at
the current rate of tax to the extent that timing differences are
expected to crystallize.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The activities of the holding company other than those
relating to deployment of surplus funds are reported under
the Segment - 'Chemicals'. Activities of the subsidiary
company are reported under the Segment - ‘Construction'.
All other activities are reported as 'Unallocated',

NORMAL OPERATING CYCLE FOR ACTIVITIES
OF SUBSIDIARY

Normal operating cycle for the current operations of the
company commence with the process of acquiring land /
development rights and ends with realisation of sale
proceeds of constructed units. Thus the normal operating
cycle is longer than a vear and differ from project to project.
Assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current
accordingly on the basis of expected time of realisation of
sale proceeds of constructed units.
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NOTE - 27

OTHER DISCLOSURES & NOTES

1 Basis of Consolidation
The Consolidmied financial statements relates to ndo
Borax & Chemicals 1 id. and is Subsidiary Campany. The
consolidated financlal satemerms have been prepared In
acrordance with Accounting Standard - 21 " Consalidated
Fnancial Staternent * lwaed by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Indla, The Consolidated Financlal
Statements have baen preparved on the followhnigbasls ;-
The Financial Statements of the Company and Its
Subsidieay compary have baen combined on 8 Bne-by-
line: by adding together the book values of ke items of
Assets, Liabillitles, Income and expenses after fully
elminating intra geoup belances and transactions,
The Bat of subsidiarg cotupantes included n consolidation

ar] Comnparys hobdirg theretn are as urder
Name of the Subgidinries Countryof % ofultimats
Immpomhnn holdmg
Indobormx Infrashichune
Pui Lid.

2  The difference between the cost of Investment in the
subsidiary and the share of net amets at the time of

Raal Estate Transactions { Bevisad 2012)
a Agpegete amount cost Incurred durlng the current
reporting period

Current Year  Previous Yeas
Ohpeing work i progress 6, 71.97,029  14,27.07.363
Add : Cost incurred during the year BH 48,182 5,BE.B4,753

T7,57.45,211 20,1592 116
Less : Closing weork in propgres 3,42,14,288 &,71.97 0240
ot eeognised for the Uinits sald 40530925 13.43,95,087
Revenue recognised during the reporing period 4, 25,00, 000 148426514
Profil from sale of units 969,075 140,31 427

b Amount recetvable from/fipavable to) customers reflecting
difference of progressive biling ralsed and the noome
recognised as per Guldance Note on accounting for Real
Estate Transactions (Revised 2012).

4,  Contingent Liabilthes and Commitments for provided for:
In 1992, STC of India Lid had daimed for Rs. 9,02 807/
towrds price difference 8 ottuears, against thie, Honourable
Bombey High Cowrt ordered Cotrpany to give bank
guarantee of Ra. 1,65,000/-, (Previous year Ra. 1,65 000/

5. Previous year figures bave been
wherever necessary, to mahka them comparsble with

13
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6. During the year, company had increased ingialled
production capacity of boric acid at Pitharmpaur from 14400
MT to 20000 MT. In the proces of naease in installed
production capacity, Company has repaied to its old plant
and machinery to harmonised with new plant &
machinery and to synchronize the old production process
with new ane. Company has made addition to fachary

wuﬂmmmmmmm

7. During the year company hag capitalised Re, 42 52,229/
from power chargpes, water charges, professional fees 8
fachory salay B8 per aetual usage, for additon to fackory
bullding Es. 10,12,495/- & plant & machinery Rs.
32,39,734/-,

8 Poymentio Stetubory Auditors:

Current Year  Previous Year

Rupees Rupess

al  As Auditors 4.50.000 3,00, 000
b)  In Other Capacity

For Tax Audit 1,50.000 1,00, 000

For Certification 5.31,500 3,106,010

Fot Taxation Matters 3,000,000 3.54 500

Total 14,31,500 10,770,510

9  Managerial Remuneration to Dinechors:
Break up of Remuneration (Holding Company)

1. Salary & Allowances 34 56,000 34.56,000
2. Contribution to provident Fund 259,200 2.59 200
3. Commission on profit 1,06,76,108 1,58,64,477
4. Perquisites 6,18,336 7.22,419

Total  1.50,09,644 2,03,02, 096

The Company has taken Group Gratuily Poliey and
corirnuding for the Directors is not separately determined,
hence notinchided abowve.

Break up of Remuneration (Subsidiary Company)
Salary & Allowances 400,000 8,900,000

10 The Balances of sundry debtoem, trade paymbles, loans and
advarces are subjert to canfirmation & recondllation, i
any, In the opinion of the management, adjustment, If any,
arlsing cut of reconclliaton are nat expected to be
significant,

11 In the opindon of the Board of Divectons, the assets [other
thyen fixed aesets and ruon-curvent Imvestmernds) beve value
ol realisation in the ordinery course of busirness at lepet
equal to the armount at which thes ave stated,

12 Major camponerds of deferred tax Dablliies and sl
arising on account of liming difference are :-
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31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Liabilities

On account of Depreciation 55,01,875 5,95 485
Assets
Cn account of Disallowances

Met Deferred Tax Liability

55.01,875 5.95 485

Related party Disclosures :-

Ky Management Pervonnel & their relatives

a)

b)

Shi 5. K. Jain, Mensging Divector and StrlSajal Jain,
Executive Dirvector of the Cotgrarny hokd signidficant inberest
and key menagement position in the Comparny. Mr. Fieush
Shah, Executive Director of Subsidiary Company
Indobore Infrs. Pt Lid

Detalls of Transaction with the persons referred to in (a)
above and theirrelative Mm. Sushila Jain, ane ax under-

1 Fermurexation pead to Manegng Dirctor * 7o 101,518
2 Bemuresation peid to Bendive Diectar * To0dEE 1015108
3 Directers Sitting Fees paid to Mes Sushils Jain 33000 42000
4 Femuresation peid to Berutive Divecter (Subsicdiang) GO0000 2ol
5 Purchese of sheres of Subsicheny from Shei, S HKJam - 5066200
& Purchase of sheses of Subsiciany from She, Sajal Jain - 4812947
T It Exgornae 2885397 46,30, 2
B Leosrs recetued during the year 2596858 22567632
O Lisesres vepeic] churirg the vear 338/ a07 25200000
10 Lewwws onstemnding af veer end 13092808 4101450

*The Company has taken Group Gratully Pellcy and

14

15

al
b

c)

Diirector i not separately determined, hence not induded
sbave.

Pursuant to Accounting Standard nterpretstion {4S1)-14
{Revized) "Disclonre of Reveniue from Sales Transactioes™
lemaed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the
exclse duly expenses is bifurcated Into three components:
exclse duly epenses related to sales ls recuced from Girase
Sales, excise cty relating to the difference between the
coaing and opening shock 15 recognized n the Inventory
adpasiments and the unrecovened excise duty is recognized
under martachuing and other axpenses,

Earning per shate is computed based on the followlng:-

Year Ended
41,003 2016
9,22 B6,2T2

Year Ended
31.03.2015
13,10, 10,173

Profit atter tax - (Rs.)
Welghted average

num ber of equity Shares S2.,09,.000 J2,24.170
Basle and dilured
Eaming per Share Hs, 28.76 40.63

Faee Value of
Share Hs. 10/

13

e it

16 No Provision for diminution in value of long term

investments in quoted shares aggregating to Rs. 67,35, 785/
{Previous yenr :Rs. 67,78,004/-) has been made In accounts
asthe diminution is of temporany natune.

17 The company has not entered In any derlvative transactons

bey wawy of currency andfor interest e swap or forward
exchange coniract,

18 a)None of the suppler of the company has Informed thatftisa

19

bl

SSlunit, Therefors, cutatanding to SSlundty L consldered to
he NIL,

b}l the ahsence of any Intmetion recetved from wendors
regardimyg the status of thelr registration undar the * Micno,
Small ard Medium Enderprises Developmerd fct, 2006 ™ the
ootnparny bs unable to sormply with the disclosure requived to
be tnade relafirg thevets,

Detnils of CSR Spend during the financial year.
Dhaing the year, the Company has incurred an amount of
Rs. 63,01,107/- towmrds Corporate Social Responsibility

fhure, which inchudes previous years unspent amount
of Rs. 27 47, 154/-.

The comparyy has talen Group Gratutty Palicy from LIC and
the premhms determined by Lic and payable for the
financial year adjusted for effect of acturial valiation at year
end 15 charged to Profit & Loss Account.Required
disclomirgs a8 per partculara recebpred from LIC and
accounts are a8 under;

Cwmenl Year Progioue Year

Assumpticns
Discount Rate BT B
Salary Esalation

Withdrawal rate 1 o 3% depending on age Withdrawal mbe 1 16 3%

Martality Rate LEC (1994.96) LIC (1994.96)
Hucees Buces:

Table showing changes in present value of ohligations

I} Present value of abligations -beginning of the year 49.74,219 41,98.178

iy Interest cost 1,35 B54

3,597,038
s

iy Cumrent Service cost 203 554

vy  Benefds paid

2 936 633

rial [gainiloss on ohlgations
: 45,74,219

56,94, 1549
4,681,252

47,795,738
4,39.069
4,853,352

return on hu|:-|-||| assets

lif Expected
lily  Contributions
W}  Benefitz paid {3, Ly, 50|
vi  Acturial gaim / (lass] on plan assets

56,98.159

vi) Falr value of plan assets -end of the year S58.68.911

Amount to be recognised in the balance sheet

iy Fair value of plan assets -end of the vear G8.68,911 56 98,159
iy Present value of abligations -end of the vear 52 45 55 45,74 219
iy A ALeabilingd recognioed [P I | T.2% 840

Exponess recognised in statemand ol profi & ks account

Iy Currend service cosl 2.59.453 2,03 554

iy Inberest cost 3.07. 034 3,365,854

liiy Expected return on plan assets 14.B1,252| 4,39, 0691

) Acturial |gain) [ loss recognised 75, G50| s

vi  Adpastment for prepakl portian 24,768 262,148
LCSA premum | Renewal date variation

vif Expenses recaopnised in profit & loss account §.25 3RT 3,62 487
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21 Segrnentwise revenus, resuls and capital ernplowed:

1 Seqroent Revenue

13

e it

22 Addiienal information parsaent to para 2 of geteral
inshtuctions for the preparation of Consolidated Finencial

a) Chemicals 6,51,18527  72.70,54.698 Staternents:
b} Consturction 42500000  14.84.26514
o gelnsd L I P Marne of the Entitny Met Assets Share in Profit or Loss
£ Segment Result as T of Amount as T of Amourdt
a) Cheamicals 10,79, 70,715 14,44 54 611 versolidate coralidatad]
b} Consturetion 968075 1.40,31 427 met Assets Profit or loss
Total 10,89,39,790  15,84,86,038
Liss - Intevest (1.77,.221) (2,86,148) Indo Borax & 9764 85,08,26320 99.25 9,15,9343
Add: Other [ncomeBExpenses 2,775,290 536 412,99 786 Chemnicals Limited
Profit before Tax 136292106 19.94.9963% Subridiany
3 Capital Ermployed Indoborax Infrastructure 236 2,05,08529 0.75 6,92 B36
a) Chemicals 471279889 534014.697 Pt Licatas S ——— E———
oAl Ly 100,00 87 08,34 849 10000 ©22 86272
b) Consturetion 3,55.46,998 9,58 70,126 —_— —_—
¢} Unallocated 38,17.00934 . 19.8577.650
BRAL2068] | Resa62.473
As per our report of even date attached
For VS.LALPURIA & COMPANY " &
Chartered Accourntants Arun 5 Sumka - Divector Chalrman & Managing Director,
(Frm No. 105581W)
Sajal 5. Jain
VS.LALPURIA Natendrakumar Mittal - Director Vice Chaivrman SrExecutive Director, CFO
M., No. 15926 G. R. Parmar - Director Pravin Chavan Company Secetary

Mumbai, May 30, 2016
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Private Limited,

t

DIRECTORS' REPORT
To The Members of Indoborax Infrastructure

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting Seventh Annual
Report and the Audited Statement of Accounts for the year

ended on 31" March, 2016.

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND OPERATIONS
The performance of the Company for the financial year
ended 31° March, 2016 is summarized below:

(T . in lacs)
Particulars 31-3-2016 [31-3-2015
Sales & other income 425.00] 1,513.96
Profit before Depreciation & Taxation 10.48 170.99
Less : Depreciation 0.79 0.98|
Provision for Taxation 279 57.06
Deferred Tax (0.03) {0.51)
Profit after Depreciation & Taxation 6.93 113.46
Balance brought forward 179.81 66.35
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 186.74 179.81
DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend dividend for the year
under review.

RESERVES

During the year company has not transferred any amount
to General Reserve, thus entire amount is available for
appropriation is retained in profit and loss account.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

During the year company has sold a unit out of 2 residential
units held in stock, thus company recorded turnover of Rs.
425.00lacs (Rs.1513.96 lacs in 2014-15) and earned profit
aftertax of Rs. 6.93 lacs (Rs. 113.46 lacs in 2014-15)

DEPOSITS FROM PUBLIC
The Company has not accepted any deposits from public.

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013,
the board of directors, to the best of their knowledge and
ability, confirm that:

(i) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed

and there are no material departures;

{ii} They have selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company

as at 31" March, 2016 and of the profit of the Company
for that period;

(iii) They have taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

{iv) They have prepared the annual accounts on a going
concern basis;

(vl They have devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

DETAILS OF LOAN GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE
AND GUARANTEE GIVEN COVERED U/S 186 (4)
OFTHE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Company has not given any Loan, made investment or
given guarantee covered w/s 186(4) of the Companies Act,
2013.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Being engaged in construction and development of
properfies, company exposed to varying degrees of
uncertainty, Effective risk management is, therefore
crucial for the company to optimize its performance. The
risk identified by the management in the real estate sector
are regulatory risk, project implementation risk, borrowing
risk, liquidity risk, input cost risk, land related risk, credit
risk, competition risk. The board of directors reviews the
risks and monitors the steps to be taken to control risk and
ensures that the overall risk exposure is within the risk
capacity and risk appetite of the company. The board of
directors of the company are also apprised of the risks faced
by the Company, and of the adequate and timely risk
management measures taken to mitigate them.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGE-
MENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES REFERRED TO
SECTION 188(1)

None of the transactions with related parties falls under the
scope of Section 188(1) of the Act. No material related
party transactions, i.e. exceeding ten percent of the annual
turnover as per last audited balance sheet, were entered
during the year by your company. The information on the
transactions with related parties pursuant to Section 134
(3) (h) of the Act read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies
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Il{hcmunﬁ}l Rules, 2014 to be given in AOC-2 are not
applicable.
|

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The activities of the Company is such where the particular
required pursuant to section 134 (m) i.e. conservation of
energy, technology absorption is notapplicable.

Foreign Fxchange earning & Outgo: NIL
NUMBER OF MEETING OF THE BOARD

During the financial year 2015-16 the Board of Directors
met 4 times on the following dates: 30-May-2015, 18-Sept-
2015, 7-Jan-2016 and 18-Mar-2016.

DIRECTORS

Company has four directors Mr. 5.K.Jain, Mr. Sajal Jain,
Mr. Piyush Shah and Mr. Govind Parmar. Mr. Govind
Parmar, is an Independent Director of Indo Borax &
Chemicals Ltd was appointed as per clause 24 of the SEEI
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulation, 2015.

As provided under Section 92(3) of the Act, the extract of
the annual return is given in Annexure | in the prescribed
Form MGT-9, which forms part of this report.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. V. S. Lalpuria & Co, Chartered Accountants, Statutory
Auditors of the Company hold office, in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, up to
conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting and are
eligible for re-appointment. The company has received
letter from them to effect that their appointment, if made;
would be within the prescribed limits under section 141(3)
(g) of the Companies Act, 2013 and they are not
disqualified from appointment.

COMMENTS ON AUDITORS REPORT
The Auditors Report does not contain any qualifications or
adverse comments and therefore, do not call for and

comment.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mumbai,
May 30, 2016

S. K. Jain
Chairman
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As on finandal year ended 31st March, 2016

I REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

I
I
| [Puvsant i section 92{8) of the Corpanion Act, 2013 ond ride 12(1) of the Compunies { Monagement and Administeadion) Rules, 2014]
I
I

i CIN
) Registration Date
iy Name of the Company

V) Whether Listed Company

lvii)  Name, Address and contact details of

I Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

M PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

iv)] Category/Sub-Category of the Company
ly) Address of the Registered office & Contact Details

UA5400MHZ2009PTC 197583
03-12-2000
Indoborax Infrastructure Private Limited

Santacruz (West),
Mumbai -400 (054
Tel-2648 9142
Fax-2648 9143

NO
No Transfer Agent

| All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:

S N Name and description NIC Code of the % total turmover
RN of main products/service product/service of the Company
1 Housing Construction MWB i o 100%

(i1 PARTICUALRS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Private Limited Company/Limited by Shares
302, Link Rose, Linking Road,

St.| Name and address CN Holding/Subidiary{ % of shases| Applicable
No|  of the company / Associates held Section
1 Indo Borax & Chemicals Limited )
302, Link Rose, Linking Road, LoglMHIssRLOosty7|  Holding 100% 2(d6)
Santacruz (West), Mumbal -100 054

I Category-wise gshare holding

IV SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity share caplial Brealup as percentage of Total Bquity)

Category of Shareholders
the vear

Mo of Shares held at the beginning of

Mo of Shares held at the end of the year

% change

during the
Year

shares

Demat |[Physical |Total % of totallDemat |Physical |Total

% of total
shares

A Promoters

1 Indian
a) Individuals/HUF
b} Central Gowt.
¢l State Gowt.
d) Bodies Corporate - 10,
e) Banks/Fl
f)y Any Other (Specify)

(H0 10,000 100,001 - 10,000

10,000

103,00

Sub-Total (A) (1):- - 10,

Coo 10,000 | 100.00

[ wer]

1O000.0

10,000

100
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2 Foreign
a) MRI-Individuals
b) Others-Individuals
¢ Bodies Corporate
d) Banks/Fl
e Other (Specify)

Sub-Total (A) (2):-

Total shareholding of Promoter

A= A(l)+A (2)

10,000

10,000

100.00

10,000

10,000

100.00

B Public Shareholding

1 Institutions
a) Mutual Funds
b) Banks/Fl
c) Central Gont.
d) State Govt.
e) Venture Capital Funds
fI Insurance Companies
gl Flls
h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds
i) Others (Specify)

Sub-Total (B) (1):-

2 Non- Institutional

a) Bodies Corporates

i) Indian

ii) Owverseas

b} Individuals

i) Individuals shareholders
holding nominal share capital
upto Rs. 1 Lakh

ii) Individuals shareholders
holding nominal share capital

in excess of Rs. 1 Lakh

Others (Speticy)- NEI

c)  Others (Speficy)- Clearing Members -

Sub-Total (B) (2):-

Total Public shareholding

B= B(1)+B (2)

C Shares held by custedian for

GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total (A + B + C )

10,000

10,000

100.00

10,000

10,000

100.00
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= i) Shareholding of Promoters 1
5r. |Shareholders Name Shareholding at the beginning of |Shareholding at the end of the vear|% change
No. the year during the

year #
No, of|% of total|¥ of |[No. ofl% of total|% of shares
Shares  |shares of|shares Shares  |shares of|pledged/
the pledged/ the encumbered
company |encumber company |to total shares
ed to total
shares
1|Indo Borax & Chemicals Ltd 10,000 100.00 10,000 | 100.00
Total 10,000 | 100,00 10,000 1 100.00
ill) Change In promotes shareholding ( Please speciy, i there s no change )
St. Shareholding at the Cumulative
Mo beginning of the year| Shareholding during
the year
MNo. of|% of total|No. of|% of total
Shares  |shares of|Shares shares of
the the
company company
At the beginning of the year 10,000 100
Date wise increase/decrease
in Promoters sharehlding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase or decrese ( e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/ sweat
equity ete. -
At the end of the year 10,000 100

There are no transfer of shares during the year.
) Shareholding patiern of top ten shareholders { other than directors, Promoters and helders of

ADRs and GDRa) :

The entire share capital is held by holding Company as on 31st March, 2016
v} Shareholding of Director & Key Managerial Personnel
The entire share capital Is held by holding Company as on 31st March, 2016
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W
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
VI

INDEBTEDNESS :
Indebtedness of the company induding interest vutstading / accrued but not duesophdenBat
Secured [Unsecured Deposits | Total
Loan Loans Indebtedness
excluding
deposit
Indebtedness at the beginning of
the financial year { 01/04/2015)
i) Principal Amount . 6,26,25 3582 . 6,26,25,3582
ii) Interest due but not paid - 152,14 557 . 152,14 557
ili) Interest accrued but not due - - . -
[Total (i + ii + iii ) - 7.78,39,939 - 7.78.39,939

|Change in indebtedness during the
financial year

Addition - 58.,51.0056 - 58,561,096
Deduction - 6,68,63,956 . 6,68,63,956
Net Change a (6,10.12,860)[ [6,10,12,860)

Indebtedness at the end of the
tinancial year [ 31/03/2018)

i) Principal Amount - 1,36,78,142 . 1,36,78,142
i) Interest due but not paid . 31.48,937 . 3148937
i1} Interest accrued but not due . - - -

Total (i + ii + iii ) . 1,68.27.079 . 1,68.27,079

REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A Remymerstion to Mansging Divector, Whole Time Dirgctor i

Sr. |Particulars of Remuneration Mame of the Total Amount
Mo Executive
Piyush Shah
1|Gross Salary
a) Salary as per provisions contained in 900,000 9,00,000

Section 17{1) of Income Tax Act, 1961
b) Value of perguisites under section
17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

c) Profit in liew of salary under section
17{3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Ll 2

Commission

o

-as % of profit
-others
Others -
Total (A) 9,00,000 9,00,000
Ceiling &s per Act Within the limits prescribed
under Section- I of Schedule V

Lh

B Remuneration to other Directors:
Company has not paid any rernuneration to other Directors

C Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/WTD
Company has not paid any rermunemation to KMP other than WTD

VIl PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

There are no penalties, punishments or compounding of offences during the vear.
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REPORT ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial
statements of INDOBORAX INFRASTRUCTURE
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the company”), which comprises
the Balance Sheet as at 31" March, 2016 and the
statement of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the
year then ended, on that date, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the
matters stated in sub-Section 5 of section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") with respect to
preparation of these standalone financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Companv in
accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies ( Accounts ) Rules, 2014 { “the rules”). This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safequarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies: making judgements and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatermnent, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
standalone financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are
required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing specified under sub-Section 10 of Section 143
of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
staternents are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the

risks of material misstatement of the financial statemenits,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial
control relevant to the Company's preparation of the
financial statements that give true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company's directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial staternents.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

OPINION

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at 31" March, 2016 and its profit and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY
REQUIREMENTS
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report)

Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central

Government of India in exercise of powers

conferred by sub-section 11 of seclion 143 of the

Act, we enclose in the Annexure A a staterment of

the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the

Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by sub- section 3 of Section 143 of the

Act, we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purpose of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books;

¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and
Laoss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of
account;

d} In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards Specified under section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the rules;
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e) On the basis of written representations received
from the directors as on March 31, 2016, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors,
none of the Directors are disqualified as on
March 31, 2016, from being appointed as a
director in terms of sub-section 2 of Section
164 of the Act;

f) With respect to the adequacy of the international
financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectives of such
controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B” and:

g) With respect to the other matters to be included
in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies [ Audit and Auditors')
Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

Mumbai,

May 30, 2016

(3

i} There are no pending litigation which may
impact on its financial position in financial
statements asat 317 March, 2016.

ii) The company did not have any long term
contracts including derivatives contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses,

iii)  There is no requirement for transferring any
amount to the Investors Education and Protection
Fund by the company.

For V. S. LALPURIA & COMPANY.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(Firm No. 105581W)

(V. S. LALPURIA)
Proprietor
Membership No. 15926

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Annexure A referred to in Independent
Auditor's Report to the members of the Company
on the standalone financial statements for the year
ended 31" March, 2016, we report that:

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(a) The company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has physically verified of its fixed
assets. In our opinion, physical verification is
reasonable having regards to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets.

The inventory of constructed unit, has been verified
by the management during the year and no

discrepancy has noticed on verification of physical
stock and book records.

In our opinion and according to information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
other parties covered in the Register maintained
under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph
3(iil} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or provided
any guarantees or security to the parties covered
under Section 185 of the Act. The Company has
complied with the Provision of Section 186 of the Act
in respect of investments made or loans or guarantee
or security provided to the parties covered under
Section 186.

(v)

(vi)

The company has not accepted any deposits from the
public in accordance with the provisions of the
sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed there
under.

The Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the provision of Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the Company.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanation

given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is
regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues
income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs,
value added tax, cess, professional tax and other
material statutory dues, as applicable, with the
appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given
to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs,
value added tax, cess, professional tax, and other
material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March
2016 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations
given to us, there are no dues of Income tax, Sales
tax, Value added tax, Service tax which have not
been deposited with the appropriate authorities on
account of any dispute,

(viii) As the Company does not have any loans or

borrowings from any financial institution or bank or
Government, nor has it issued any debentures, as at
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the balance sheet date the provisions of Clause 3(viii)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
(ix) The Company has not raised any money by way of
initial public offer, further public offer (including debt
instruments) and term loans during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the

Order are not applicable to the Company.

(x) According to the information and explanation given
to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

(xi) According to the information and explanations give

to us and based on our examination of the records,

the Company has paid/provided for managerial
remuneration in accordance with the requisite

approvals mandated by the provision of section 197

read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order
is not applicable.

(xii)

(xiii) According to the information and explanalions give
to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with sections 188 of the Act, where
applicable. The details of such related transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required under Accounting Standard (AS) 18,

(3

Related Party Disclosures Specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014

(xiv} According to the information and explanations give
to us and based on our examination of the records,
the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year.

(xv) According to the information and explanations give
to us and based on our examination of the records,
the Company has not entered into non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with
him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under
Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi} of the
orders are not applicable to the Company.

For V. S. LALPURIA & COMPANY

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(Firm No. 105581W)

(V. S. LALPURIA)
Mumbai, Proprietor
May 30, 2016 Membership No. 15926

ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of
even date on the standalone financial statements of
the Indoborax Infrastructure Private Limited.
REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (I) OF SUB-
SECTION 3 OFSECTION 143 OF THEACT

We have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of INDOBORAX
INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED (“the
company”) as of 31 March, 2016 in conjunction with our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company's management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to Company's policies, the safequarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act
2013 (“the Act”).

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls over financial
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reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143 (10) of the Act to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls, and, both issued by the ICAl. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

QOur audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal controls based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depends on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial
control system over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
A Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company,(2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded

71

3

as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL
FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal
financial contrals over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
contrals over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls
over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, the Company has in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial control system
over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2016, based on the internal
controls over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components
of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by ICAI.

For V. S. LALPURIA & COMPANY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(Firm No. 105581W)

(V. S. LALPURIA)
Proprietor
Membership No. 15926

Mumbai
30" May, 2016
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2016
Rupees Rupees
Notes
|. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
a) Share Capital 1 100,000 1,00,000
b) Reserves & Surplus 2 18,674,328 17,981,492
Total (1) 18,774,328 18,081,492
. 2. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long Term Borrowings
3 16,827,079 77,839,939
Total (2) 16,827,079 77,839,939
- 3. CURRENT LIABILITIES
' a) Trade Payables 4 1,712,787 1,575,962
b) Other Current Liabilities 5 775,827 4,228,288
c¢) Short Term Provisions 6 " 1,273,067
Total (3) 2,488,614 7,077,317
Total 38,090,021 102,998,748
Il. ASSETS
1. NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Fixed Assets
- Tangible Assets T 105,641 184,939
(b) Deferred Tax Assets 54 500 51,305
(c) Long-term Loans & Advances 8 175,220 168,970
Total (1) 335,370 405,214
2. CURRENT ASSETS
a) Inventories
: 9 34,214,286 67,197,029
b) Trade Receivables 10 2.027,621 26,716,580
Cr} CESh & CaSh EqUIVaIEﬁtS 1 300.174 1.877.387
d) Short-term Loans & Advances 12 1'122:5?[] 5:332:533
Total (2) 37,754,651 102,593,534
Total SS0nuA U209, 748
Significant Accounting Policies 19
| Other Disclosures & Notes 20

' As per our report of even date attached

For V.S.LALPURIA & COMPANY

Chartered Accountants
~ (Firm No. 105581W)

Piyush Shah - Executive Director

S.K.Jain - Director

V.S.LALPURIA
Proprietor
M. No. 15926

Sajal S. Jain - Director

Govind Parmar-Director
Mumbai, May 30, 2016



' Significant Accounting Policies 19
Other Disclosures & Notes 20

| As per our report of even date attached

For V.S.LALPURIA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
| (Firm No. 105581W)

V.S.LALPURIA
| Proprietor
| M. No. 15926

Govind Parmar-Director

Mumbai, May 30, 2016
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S.K.Jain - Director

Sajal S. Jain - Director

Indoborax Infrastructure Pvt. Lud. )
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2016
Rupees Rupees
Notes
INCOME
Revenue from Operations 42 500.000 148 426 514
Other Income 13 R 2:553:331
Total Income 42,500,000 151,395,845
. EXPENSES
Cost of Construction 14 858.565 35,083,162
Changes in Inventory 15 32,982 743 75,510,334
Employee Benefits Expenses 16 1403173 2,183,681
Finance Costs 17 3,498,586 16,937,438
Depreciation 7 79,298 98,287
Other Expenses 18 2,708,560 4,582,185
Total Expenditure 41,530,925 134,395,087
| PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 969,075 17,000,758
TAX EXPENSE & 706.308
Current Tax 279,443 ]
Deferred Tax (3,204) (51,309)
Total Tax Expenses 276,239 5,655,003
PROFIT/(LOSS) AFTER TAX 692,836 11,345,755
Basic and diluted earning per share.(Face Value Rs. 10/- each) 69.28 1134.58

Piyush Shah - Executive Director
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A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Met Profit before tax and extracrdinary items adjusted.

Adjustments for ;
Depreciation
Imterest

Other [ncome

Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustments for :

Trade and other Receivables

Inventories

Loans & Advances

Trade and other pavables

Cash generated from operations

13
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ALL FIGURES IN RUPEES
Year ended Year ended

31.03.2016

31.03.2015

9.69 075 1.70,00,758
79,298 08,287
34,958,586 1,69,37.438
[29.69.331)

35,77,8584 1.40,66,394

45,446,959 3.10,67,152

2 46,588,959

3,29,82.743

56,73,718

145,88, 703]
5,87 56,717

(1,83,78,298)

7,55,10,334
(11,41,873)
(50,75,100)

5.09,15.063

6,33.03,676

8,19,582.215

Interest {34, 98,.586) (1,69.37 438)
Income-Tax (2,79,443) (57,06,308)
(37.78.029) (2.26,43.746]
Cash Flow before extraordinan items 5.95,25,647 5,93 38,469
Extraordinary items
Met Cash Flow from Operating activities —-- A 5,95,25,647 5,93,38,469
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets
Preliminary Expenses
Income, gainsloss from Investments 29 69,331
Met Cash used in Investing Activities — B - 29.69,331
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loan from Holding Co, {2.96,81, 111} (8,44,74,136)
Long term borowings 13,.13,31,749) 54,09 726
Met Cash from Financing Activities - C (6,10,12 860) (7.90.64.410)
Met Increase [ (decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalent (14.87,213) {1,67,56,610)
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the year 18,77 387 1,86,33,997
Cash & Cash Eguivalent end of the year 3,90,174 18,77 387
Mote @ Figures in brachets represent outflows
As per our report of even date attached
Chartered Acoountants
(Firm No. 105581W) S K.datn - Director
LALPURIA
e Sajel 5. Jain - Director
M. Na. 15926 Govind Parmar-Director

Mumbal, May 30, 2016
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]I—P:IDTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2016
i Rupeas Rupeas
Notes 3 Mar20M6 31 Mar 2015

' NOTE - 1
| SHARE CAPITAL
| Authorised Capltal
| 2,580,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 2,500,000 2,500,000
| Issued & Subscribed
| 10,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 100,000 100,000

Paid up
| 10,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- sach 100,000 100,000
| : i

Total 100,004 100,000

' 1) The reconclllation of the humber of shares wﬁnalng ls sat out below:
| 21 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2015
| . of Sh Ameount No. Amourtt
| Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 10000 100,000 10000 100,000
. Equity Sharss at the end of the ysar 10000 100,000 10000 100,000
| 2) Number of shares held by persons holding more than 5% of outstanding share capital :
| Indo Borax & Chemicals Lid * 31/03/2018

* {including 1 share hokl by nominiee shareholder) 10000 10000

| 3) Since ncaplion, no sharss wers alated without peyment baing receivad in cash or as bonus shares ar baught back.
| 4) Thes Company has ohe dacs of squity sharss having par value of Rs. 10/- par share. Each shareholdar s sllgils for

o vota per share held. In the evant of liquidation, the equity sharaholders are eligible to racalvs the ramaining assets
| ofthe Company aftar disiribution of all preferanital amounts, In proportion to thelr shareholding.

| NOTE - 2 NOTE - 4
| RESERVES & SURPLUS TRADE PAYABLES
Statement of Profit & Loss Trada Payahieg for Barvice & Expances 984,726 837,213
| As per last Balance Sheet 17001482 9,635,737  Trada Payabiea for Maerial & 18081 938,749
| Profit for the year BO2B36 11345755 Labour(Nelof Advances) Total 1,712,787 1,575,982
| Closing Balance 18,674 328 17,681,402 NOTE - §
——— OTHER CURRENT LIABILTIES
T Totsl 18874328 17981493 Ojper Pavebles
| LONG TERM BORROWINGS Dapoght recabmd from flal cwmars 585,000 1,284,000
| Loans from Holding Company 1734201 31,4152 Total 775,827 4,228,268
 Loans from Directors 15082878 4fid2dfer  NOTE - 8
(Long term borrowing with ~ Total 16,827,079 77,838,838  SHORT-TERM PROVISONS
| ng ficed repayment echedule) Provinion for Income Tex P 1
| ( Nat of Adwancas) Total g 1067
||u'|'l -7
Fixed Assets
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
Additions/Ad
Sr. As at ustments | saiey As at upta |Depredatl| o ster Upto As at As at
No| Fixed Assets o, 545018 during the ;;’:‘:sf:; I‘:  [31-03-2016 [o1-04-2015 O :‘;;:"‘“ Adjustment |31-03-2016 |31-03-2016 | 31-03-2015
year
Tangible Assets
I': r-'la'lt&quJ‘EJl‘f‘rEn'[ 36,856 - - 36,856 17,544 19,312 - 36,656 - 19,312
¢ |Furniture & Fixtume 1.575 - - 1,675 1,037 ERE: ] - 1,675 - 538
E Office Equipmants 1.250 - - 1,280 1,127 123 - 1,260 . 123
plvehicien 724950 = : paa,088 | 650902 59,325 : 6,19.317 | 105,641 64,966
TOTAL 7 64,639 ; = 7.64,630 | 5.79.700 79,208 ; 6,568,008 | 1,05,641 1,84,030
T [Frevious Year T 64,630 = 7.64,630 | 4,81,413 08,287 5,709,700 | 1,684,039 2,063,236
|
|

™
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NOTE - 8
LONG-TERM LOANS
& ADVANCES

Security Deposits 175.220

168,970

Total 175,220

168,970

NOTE - 9

INVENTORIES

(As taken, valued & certified
by the Management)
Constructed Flat (at the
lower of cost and net

realizable value) 34214286
Total 34,214,286

67,197,023
67,197,029

NOTE - 10

TRADE RECEIVABLES
(Unsecured, Considered good
unless otherwise specified)
Debts due for period exceeding
six months

(Unsecured, considered good)
Other Debts

1,736,216
291,405

26,716,580

Total 2,027,621

26,716,580

NOTE - 11

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash on Hand

Balances with Banks,

'-— In Current Accounts

45,673

344,501

51,719

1,825,668

Total 390,174

1,877,387

NOTE - 12

SHORT TERM LOANS

& ADVANCES

OTHERS

Advances recoverable in
cash or in kind or

for value to be received
Receivable from customers
- Refer Note 20 (3) -
Income Tax Advances
(net of provisions)
Maintenace Recoverable
from flat owners
Advances to Staff

10,604

792,595
314,371

2.000

590,138
6,212,400

Total 1,122,570

6,802,538

NOTE - 13
OTHER INCOME
Interest on Bank Deposit -

2,969,331

Total e

2,969,331

76

NOTE - 14

COST OF CONSTRUCTION
Architect & Design Expenses
Construction Contracts
Municipal Approval Charges
Purchase of Materials -
558,565

300,000

Other Constructions
& Site Expenses

3

3,154,924
15,674,880
8,623,954
7,628,404

Total 858,565

35,083,162

NOTE -15

CHANGES IN INVENTORY
Opening Stock - Work-
in-Progress(Including

cost of Land) -
Opening Stock - 67,197,029
Constructed Flats
Closing Stock -
Constructed Flat

142,707,363

(34,214,286) (67,197,029)

Total 32,982,743 75,510,334
NOTE - 16
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 1,339,973 2,105,777
Workmen & Staff Welfare 63,200 77,904
Total 1,403,173 2,183,681
NOTE -17
FINANCE COSTS
Interest 3498586 16,937,438
Total 3,498,586 16,937,438
NOTE -18
OTHER EXPENSES.
Rates & Taxes 3,400 5,700
Repairs & Maintenance 40,523 17,135
Directors Remuneration 900,000 890,000
Payment to Auditors 191,500 60,000
Legal & Professional Charges 393,524 1,023,996
Miscellaneous Expenses 422 721 472,511
Brokerage & Commission 702,000 2,112,000
Bank Charges 799 843
Electricity Expenses 40,572 -
Water Charges 13,521 -
Total 2,708,560 4,582,185
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NOTE-19

SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) METHOD OF ACCOUNTING
The accounts have been prepaved widey the historical cost
commventon on an aceruael besls In accordance with
applicable aocounting standerda notified under the ralevant
provieions of the Companies &ct, 2013

b} FIXED AREFTS
Fheed assets are stated at cost.

¢} DEPRECIATION
Drepreciation s provided on  sasels  with refarence to the
useful life of the respective assets specified in and in the
manner presaibed in Schedule I of the Compeniea Act,
2013. However, assets's having nil usaful life at sibe, hes fulk;
depreciated.

d) INVENTORIES
Unsold constructed unit vahuzd at proportionate of cost of
land, cost of materiale, consiraction expenses, other direct
epenses and ndirect expenses, which la valued at cost or
net realisable vahae,

e) INCOME RECOGNINION
Income from sale of units are recognised when the
substaintial risks and rewerds of cunership ans traneferred to
the buyerunder the terms of the contract.

f) CONTINGENT LIABILITY
In the opinkcm of the board of directors there [s no contingent
Rability odst a5 on date of balance sheet.

al DEFERRED TAXATION
Dreferved Toax reaulting from timing differences bebasen book
and tax profits is accounted for under the ebility method , &t
the current rate of income tasc.

h) SEGMENTREPORTING

The operations of the company fall under a single reportable
segment, viz, 'Construction' within the meaning of AS-17,

[] NOBMAL OPERATING CYCLE
Normal operating cyde of the comparny commence with the
process of acquiring land / development rights and snds with
realisation of sale proceeds of constructed units. Thuas the
ncrmal operating cyde is longer than a year and differ from
project to project.

§) EARNINGPER SHARE
Basic and diubted earndngs per share ere computed by
dividing the net profit efter o atiribuisble to equity
shareholders for the vear with the weighted sverage
number of equity shares outstanding during the vear.

k) Other accounting policies, wherever applicable, are same as
followed in normal course of business.

13
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NOTE - 20
OTHER DISCLOSURES & NOTES

1 Previous year Oguvres hewe been yeerranged/regrouped,
wherever neceasary, to make thetn comperable with current

year figures.

2 DHadosure pursuant to Guidance Note on Accounting for Real
Estatz Transachons [ Revised 2012} and ofhver disdosures
pursuant to part Il of Schedule [

Aggregate amount of cost incurred during the current
reparting perlod

Current Year Previous Year

Opeing worl in progress 6,71,97.029 14,2707 363
Add : Cost incurred during the year 825,48, 182 5,88 84 753
7.57,45211 20,1592,116

Less : Closing Constructed Unit 3.42,14.286 6,71,97.029
Cost recognised for the Units sold — 4,15,30,925 13,4395 087
Revenue recognised during the year 4. 25 00,000 14 84 26,514
Profit from sale of units 969,075 1,40.31,427

3 Amount [recetvable foin) fpayable to customers refleciing
differenice of progresaive billog tadsed and mles recognised as
per Guidance Note on accounting for Real Estate Transactions
(Revised 2012),

4 The Balances of mmdry ceditors, loans and advences am
subject to confirmation & recondilintion, if any. In the opmion
of the management, adjustment, if any, arismg out of
reconclation are not expected to be slqnificant.

5 Inthe opinion of the Board of Directors, the value of asseats | If
realised in the ordinary course of hustness, atleast equal to the
anonnt at which they are stated,

6 Breakupof emmineration paild to the Executve THnechor

Current Year Previous Year
Salary & allowances 9.00,000 8,90,000

9,00,000 5,90,000

7 Related parly Disdogures --
A Where Conirol Exista

a} Name : Indo Borax & Chemicals Lid,
Relationship Halding Company
Halding ' 100%
Cument Year Previous Year
b} Details of Transactions
Outstanding [rmestment n Share Capital 1,000,000 1,00,000
Loars received during the year 32,54 238 1,07,25. 864
Amound repaid duing the vear 3.20 35 349 a 52 00,000
Loans outstanding at vear end 17,34 201 3.14,15.312
Interest Expense 6,13,189 1,19,17.627
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B HKeyManagemant Personnel & thelr relatioes
Shri Fiyush Shah, Exeeutive Director, Shri §. K Jain,
Director and Shrl.Sajal Jaln, Director of the Company and
hald ey management pasttion in the Company. Detalls of
transaction with ahowe refermed persons are as under;

Current Year

Previous Y ear

28,856,397
25, %5, 858
3,39,28, 607
1.60,62 8T8
5 Hemuneration paid to Executive Director 9,000,000

1 Interest Expense
2 Loans received during the vear
3 Loans repaid during the vear

4 Loans oustanding at year end

50,19,811
T3,17,830
19,08, 104
4,64,24 627
5.90,000

8  Major components of deferred tax labilities are ardaing on

13

Earning par share is computed based on the following:-
Profit after tax - {Hs.) 6,092,836 1,1345,755
Weighted average 10,000 10,000
number of equity Shares

Basic and diluted 69.28 1,134 .68
Eamingper Share Ra.

{(Face Vahwe of Share Ra. 10/

10 a) None of the supplier of the company has informed that

they ame a 551 unit . Therefone, cutstanding to SSI units is
nil.

b} In the absence of any infimetion recekred from verdors

eccount of timing difference ara - regardimyg the stetus of thebr reglsteation under the " Micro,
31082016  31.03,2015 Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 "
Liabilltles — the company is unable to comply with the discosure
On account of Depreclation 54,509 51,305 mhhmrﬂhﬂﬂﬂm
MNet Deferved Tax Assets 54,504 51,305
As per our report of even date attached
For V.S.LALPURIA & COMPANY Sl
Chartered A I Piyush Shah - Executive Director
{Frm No. 105581W) SK Jatn - Di
VS . LALPURIA
Sajal S, Jaln - Divector
Propristor jal
M. No. 15926 Govind P Direct

Mumbal, May 30, 2016



INDO BORAX & CHEMICAL LIMITED
Regd. Off. : 302, Link Rose, Linking Road, Santacruz (W), Mumbai - 400 054
(CIN-L24100MH1980PLC023177)

PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to section 105(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 19(3} of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member(s)

Registered Address

E-mail Id

Regd. Folio/Client ID No.

DP ID No.

[/We being the member of Indo Borax & Chemicals Limited holding --=--=-==-=-==---- -shares, hereby appoint:
1. Name : 2. Name : 3. Name :

Address Address : Address

E-mail Id : E-mail Id : E-mail Id :

Signature -----—-s-emeeeee- Signature —--—--—eeee- Signature —---—--cmeaeemean
Or failing him Or failing him Or failing him

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on poll) for me/us and on my or our behalf at the 35® Annual General Meeting of the
company, to be held on 13" August, 2016 at 1.00 p.m. at Mini Auditorium of S.N.D.T. Women's University, Sir Vithaldas
Vidya Vihar, Opp. Lido Cinema, Juhu Road, Santacruz (w), Mumbai - 400 049 and at any adjourned thereof in respect of
such resolutions as are indicated below:

Sr. No. Resolutions

1: To receive, consider and adept:

a) the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31" March 20016, together with
the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon; and

b) the Audited consclidated financial statements of the company for the financial year ended 31° March, 2016,
together with the Report of Auditors thereon.

g, To declare a Final Dividend for the year 2015-16 on Equity Shares.

3. To appeint a Director in place of Mr. S.K. Jain, Chairman & Managing Director, who retires by rotation and
being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

4. To Re-appoint of Mfs V 5 Lalpuria & Co, Chartered Accountants as Auditors of the company.

5. To approve the remuneration of the Cost Auditor for the financial year ended 31" March, 2017,
Signed this day of 2016 Affix

Revanue
Stamp of
Rs. 1/-
Signature of Proxyholder (s) Signature of Shareholder

1, Mote: This form of proxy, in order to be effective, should be duly stamped, completed and deposited at the Registered Office
of the company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting,

2. For the resolutions, Explanatory Statement and Motes, please refer to the Notice of the Thirty-fifth Annual General Meeting,

3. Please complete all the details including details of members in above box before submission.
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